

ACH XNOW

Merchant USER GUIDE

V3.0.0.15

Regal Technologies, LLC Postal Box 670 Severna Park, Maryland 21146-0670 USA Telephone (410) 975-0688 Toll Free (866) 766-1066 Fax (240) 331-9166 www.regaltek.com

CONTENTS

Terms of Use/Disclaimer/Copyright	
Terms of Use and Legal Disclosures	
Disclaimers	
General Use Restrictions	
Copyright Notification and Contact	
The Login Page	
Pin Pad Authentication	
Grid Overview	
Select/Unselect All	
Grouping	
Header Filter	14
Filter Row Menu	15
Sort Indicator	15
Adjust Column Width	15
Filter Row	16
Summary Row	16
Filter Control	16
Add/Remove Conditions	16
Change a Column in a Filter Condition	16
Change an Operator in a Filter Condition	
Edit a Condition's Value	
Records Per Page	
Clear	
Show Customization Window	
Paging	
Reset Grid	
Expand / Collapse All	
Export	19

	Print Report	19
	Scroll Bars	20
The H	Home Page	21
	Transaction Overview	22
	Ready to Process	23
	Web Init Trans	23
	Suspended Batch Trans	23
	Returns to Review	23
	Unauthorized Returns	24
	Imported Invalid ABA Trans	24
	Other Invalid Imported Records	24
	Corrections	25
	Future Payments	25
	Active Payment Plans	25
	Sent to Processor	25
	Sent To ACH	25
	Items Paid/Settled	25
	Current Month to Date	25
	Last Month	25
	Sync Legacy Transactions	26
	Refresh Trans Overview	26
	Merchant Menu (Grouping)	26
	Help	27
	Other Applications	27
Trans	saction Flow	
St	ep 1 - Add Transaction	
	Transaction Type	
	Routing Transit	
	Account Number	
	Check Type	

Check Amount	29
Effective Date	29
Reference	
Address Rolodex Icon	
Address 1 – / Address 2	
City / State / Zip	
Email	
ID	
Notify Account Holder	
Required Fields	31
Step 2 - Pre-Transmission Report	
Generate Reports in Several Formats	
Step 3 - Ready to Process	
Tran ID	
Edit	
Delete	
Clone	
Sched	
Selecting Which Transactions to Process	
Void Ready to Process Transactions	
Process Transactions	35
Transmittal Register	
Transactions by Batch Report	
Transactions	
Current Transactions	
Edit	
Delete	
Clone	
Sched	
Find Transactions	

	Transaction State	39
	Select Merchant(s)	
	Transaction Type	
	Routing Transit	
	Account Number	
	Check Type	
	Consumer / Company Name	
	Schedule	
	Check Number	
	Check Amount	
	Return Item Fee	40
	Return Fee Description	40
	Addenda Information	40
	Enrollment Type	40
	Updated Date	40
	Check / Trans Date	41
	File Import Date	41
	SSN/ID	41
	In House ID	41
	Import ID (Private Data)	41
	Trans Status	41
	Find Transactions For	41
Tr	ransaction Limits	42
D	o Not ACH List	43
Pı	re-Transmission Report	43
Proc	essing	44
R	eady to Process	44
	Edit	
	Delete	
	Clone	

Sched	45
Trans Reversal	45
Processing a Reversal	
Offsetting Batch	47
Create ENR ACH File	48
Sent To Processor	
Files	51
File List	51
Archived Files	
File Formats	
Edit File Format	53
Clone File Format	53
Delete File Format	53
Add File Format	54
Import a File	
Import File	
Import Errors	
Payment Plans	
Add Schedule	
Schedule Name	
Require Prenote Check Box	
Weekly, Bi-Weekly	
Select the Day	
Custom	
Monthly	
Fixed	
Flexible	
Prenotes	
Edit	61
Delete	61

	List	61
	Add Payment Plan	61
	Transaction Type	61
	Routing Transit	62
	Account Number	62
	Schedule	62
	Check Amount	62
	Number of Payments	62
	Plan Total	62
	Ongoing and Active	62
	Addenda Information	62
	First Payment Date	62
	Reference	63
	Company Name	63
	Address Information and Rolodex	63
	Phone	63
	Email	63
	ID	63
	In-House ID	63
	Email Notification	64
Fi	ind Payment Plans (Search)	64
	Ongoing	65
	Active	65
	Edit	65
	Delete	66
	Clone	66
	Payment Plan Overview	66
	Pay Plan History	67
	Pay Plan Totals	
	Pay Plan Notes	67

	Forecast	68
Repo	orts	69
Арре	endix A : SEC Code Definitions	71
	ARC - Accounts Receivable Truncated Check Debit	71
	BOC - Back Office Conversion Entries (effective March 16, 2007)	71
	CBR - Corporate Cross-Border Payment (no longer supported September 18, 2009)	71
	CCD - Cash Concentration or Disbursement	71
	ENR - Automated Enrollment Entry	71
	IAT – International ACH Transaction	71
	PBR - Consumer Cross-Border Payment (no longer supported September 18, 2009)	72
	POP - Point-Of-Purchase	72
	PPD - Prearranged Payment and Deposit	72
	RCK - Re-presented Check	72
	TEL - Telephone-Initiated Entry	72
	WEB - Internet-Initiated Entry	73
Арре	endix B: Report Definitions	74
	ACH Transmittal Register	74
	Batch Summaries	74
	Corrections by Submit Date	74
	Merchant Group Totals	74
	Net Settlements	74
	Non Re-Submitted Returns	74
	Pre – Transmission	74
	Previously Paid Returns	75
	Returns By Check Date	75
	Returns By Return Date	75
	Returns by Submit Date	75
	Returns To Review	75
	Settlement Batches by Date	75
	Settlement Batches by Date Detail	75

ransactions By Batch	75
ransactions By Date	75
ransactions By Date – Exported	76
ransactions by Net Settle ID	76
Jser Entries by Date	76

TERMS OF USE/DISCLAIMER/COPYRIGHT

TERMS OF USE AND LEGAL DISCLOSURES

Access or ownership to this manual signifies your assent to these terms of use in this legal notice. If you do not agree to these terms of use, please do not use this manual. Regal Technologies, LLC reserves the right to change these terms from time to time at its sole discretion.

DISCLAIMERS

All materials in this manual are provided "as is" without warranty of any kind, either express or implied, including, but not limited to, the implied warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose or non-infringement. Regal Technologies, LLC shall not be liable to any person or entity under any circumstances for any special, incidental, indirect or consequential damages of any kind, including, without limitation, damages resulting from loss of use, data or profits, whether or not advised of the possibility of damage, and on any theory of liability, arising out of or in connection with the use or performance of this information.

Although Regal Technologies, LLC has attempted to provide accurate information in this manual, Regal Technologies, LLC assumes no responsibility for the accuracy of the information. Regal Technologies, LLC may change the programs or products mentioned at any time without notice.

Regal Technologies, LLC may make mention of non-Regal Technologies, LLC products or services. This is for information purposes only and constitutes neither an endorsement nor a recommendation.

GENERAL USE RESTRICTIONS

All information, documents, products, software, and services (the "Materials") in this manual are the copyrighted work of Regal Technologies, LLC and/or their respective manufacturers, authors, developers and customers (the "Providers"). Except as stated herein, none of the Materials may be copied, reproduced, distributed, republished, displayed, posted or transmitted in any form or by any means, including, but not limited to, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, or otherwise, without the prior express written permission of Regal Technologies, LLC or the respective provider. You also may not, without Regal Technologies, LLC's prior express written permission, "mirror" any Materials in this manual in any other documentation.

Any rights not expressly granted herein are reserved. Nothing in this manual shall be construed as conferring any license under any of the Regal Technologies, LLC's or any Provider's intellectual property rights, whether by estoppels, implication, or otherwise. You acknowledge sole responsibility for obtaining any such licenses.

COPYRIGHT NOTIFICATION AND CONTACT

Regal Technologies, LLC Postal Box 670 Severna Park, Maryland 21146-0670 USA Telephone (410) 975-0688 Toll Free (866) 766-1066 Fax (240) 331-9166 www.regaltek.com

Copyright © Regal Technologies, LLC, All rights reserved.

THE LOGIN PAGE

.

To log into ACHNow[™] you must be using Internet Explorer 7 or above. The URL and login information will be provided by your merchant processor. Enter the User Name and Temporary Password you have been assigned.

Your				Yours	Slogan	Here
Logo				Home	Logout	Help
You are not currently logged in.		Login		Oth	ner Applicati	ons
	User Name: Password:	Login password? Please contact your				
	You are about to access a secured res	Security Notice ource. Affirmative Technologie ny access to this resource at a	es, Inc. reserves the right to monitor any time.	1		
	Copyright © 2000-2011	Affirmative Technologies, Inc	. All Rights Reserved.			
	ACHNow gate	way requires Internet Explore	r 7 or above			
	Home	Logout	Legal			

Upon login you will be redirected to the Change Password screen. Enter a Password that contains at least 2 numeric or special characters and is at least 8 characters in length. Confirm your password by entering it a second time. Once your password change is accepted by ACHNowTM you will be directed to the Home page.

Clicking the '?' icon will display a help screen showing the password requirements

Your Logo		Your Slogan Here
You are not currently logged in.	Change Password	Home Logout Help Other Applications
🚜 Home 🕍 Transactions 🐊 Processi Add Tra	ng 🔗 Files 🎼 Pay Plans 📓 Merchants 🦉 🖋 L nsaction Ready To Process Pre-Transmis	Users 🛛 🍓 Security 🔤 Reports
Current Password: New Password: Confirm Password:)
	Notice You have been directed to this page as your password is a temporary password sent to you via Email, your password has expired, or you have requested to change your own password.	
	Update	
Home	Logout Lega	a

PIN PAD AUTHENTICATION

Those merchants, who have elected to use Pin Pad Authentication, will be prompted for their Pin Pad Code after entering their Username/Password. This number must be exactly 4 digits in length. After entering your code, you will be directed to the Home Page.

If for any reason you cannot remember your Pin Pad Code, please contact your Processor. They have the ability to reset your code.



GRID OVERVIEW

The grids within ACHNow offer a variety of features that allow you to manipulate the data to suit your needs. The guide below offers an overview of those features and their use.

4		Tran ID				_		DIHIC	E) T)	/pe 🖭	Debit	Credit 🖻	Action	n 🖃 🕻	heck 🕹	🖻 Eff D	ate 🖃 S	sc 🖃	Added By	-	Scroll
Row	•	8		9	9	Ŷ		8	7	9	\$	Ŷ	1	8		8	Ŷ	8	5	2	/
		1137834	*****	***	1	101	PBC		w	'EB	(\$1.00)	\$0.00	Debit		7/31/20	09 7/31	/2009	1	employ.		×
		1137898	*****		1	101	PBC		W	EB	(\$1.00)	\$0.00	Debit		7/31/20	09 7/31	/2009		employ.		
		1137916	*****		1	101	PBC		W	EB	(\$1.00)	\$0.00	Debit		7/31/20	09 7/31	/2009	1	employ.		
		1137910	*****		1	101	PBC		W	EB	(\$1.00)	\$0.00	Debit		7/31/20	09 7/31	/2009	1	employ.		
		1137551	*****		1	101	PBC		W	ΈB	(\$1.00)	\$0.00	Debit		7/31/20	09 7/31	/2009	1	employ.		-
		1137883	*****		1	101	PBC		W	EB	(\$1.00)	\$0.00	Debit		7/31/20	09 7/31	/2009	1	employ.		
hany	► Co	unt = 17									(\$17.00) 17)								Increase/Decrea number of recor displayed per pa
	First	Prev Pa	age 1	🖌 of	1 Nex	đ 🛛	Last					т	otal Rei	cords:	17	Rec	ords per p	page:	25	~	◀
Control	· 🖓 🕚	FTvpel Is	ALC: NOTE: N		A COLORADO															lear	

SELECT/UNSELECT ALL

This selects all rows on the current page. If paging indicates more rows exist than are shown on the current page and you wish to select/unselect those as well, increase the "Records Per Page" so that all rows are contained on the current page or move to the next page and select the check box again.

GROUPING

You can group by the various grid headers. Simply click and drag a column header and release it in the drop zone.

					Imn															
Tran ID	Account	Chec	k 🖂 I	Ref 🖸	Name	I	HID 🖸	Туре 🔺		Debit	R (Credit	Action	1 🖻	Check Date		Eff Date	. s	E Add	ed 🖸 Clone
2	<u> </u>	2	2	2		2	2		•			Ĩ	2	0		2	1	2	0	9

You can then expand individual row items to review. You can also expand or collapse all row items by selecting the Collapse All / Expand All buttons at the bottom of the grid.

	Tran ID	Account	•	Check No		Ref		Name	E D	HID	×.	Debit		Credit		Action		Check Date	•	Eff Date		sc 🖻	Added By		Clon
	\$		7		Ŷ		Ŷ		9		Ŷ		Ŷ		Ŷ		Ŷ		Ŷ		9	2		Ŷ	
т ")	ype: CCD (Cou	int=8)			-												1				1				
2	1223562	*****77	78			OFFS		Company1				\$0	.00	\$1.	00	Credit		10/28/20	009	10/28/20	009	1	employ	e	
	1223563	*****54	44					test				\$0	.00	\$45.	00	Credit		10/28/20	09	10/28/20	009	1	employ	e	
	1223564	*****77	78			OFFS		Company1				(\$45.	00)	\$0.	00	Debit		10/28/20	009	10/28/20	009	1	employ	e	
	1223572	*****44	56					jeff dunham				(\$3.	00)	\$0.	00	Debit		10/28/20	009	10/28/20	009	1	employ	e	
	1223573	*****77	78			OFFS		Company1				\$0	.00	\$29.	00	Credit		10/28/20	009	10/28/20	009	1	employ	e	
	1223574	*****77	78			OFFS		Company1				\$0	.00	\$46.	00	Credit		10/28/20	09	10/28/20	009	1	employ	e	
	1223576	*****77	78			OFFS		Company1				(\$2.	00)	\$0.	00	Debit		10/28/20	009	10/28/20	009	1	employ	e	
	1002575	*****77	70			OFFC		Comoonul				4n	00	¢1	nn	Cradit		10/10/10	inn	10/20/20	inn	1	amalay	•	
Co	unt = 32											(\$547.	.44) 25	\$125	.00										
ist	Prev Page	1	of 1	Next		ast						4	Total	Records: 32	2						Re	cords p	er page:	25	

If you would like to remove grouping, simply drag the column header back to the main header bar.

HEADER FILTER

The header filter is available for columns where the contents are not unique. For example, Tran ID is a unique value. Therefore, the header is not available for this column. For columns where the filter is available, selecting the filter button will open a small window which displays all unique values within the column. You can resize the window by clicking and dragging the lower-right corner. Selecting a value will create a filter for that column and filters not only the current page but all grid pages returned in the data set.

	Tran ID	Account	•	No E	Ref		Name		IHIC		Debit 🖸 Credit 🖭 Ac	ion E	1	Check 🖸 Date	Eff Date	l sc	By By	Clone
ſ	2		Ŷ	8		S.		Ŷ	[8	(All)	1	2	9	5	2	7 7	
100	Type: CCD (Cou	nt=8)			10	12			2		(\$107.22)		1			10		
1	1223562	*****777	8		OFFS		Company1	- Í			(\$45.00)		1	10/28/2009	10/28/200	9	1 employe	
	1223563	*****544	4				test				(\$35.00) (\$21.00)	10		10/28/2009	10/28/200	9	1 employe	
	1223564	*****777	8		OFFS		Company1				(\$15.00)			10/28/2009	10/28/200	9	1 employe	
	1223572	*****445	i6				jeff dunham				(\$13.00)			10/28/2009	10/28/200	9	1 employe	
	1223573	*****777	8		OFFS		Company1				(\$4.00)			10/28/2009	10/28/200	9	1 employe	
	1223574	*****777	8		OFFS		Company1				(\$3.00)			10/28/2009	10/28/200	9	1 employe	
	1223576	*****777	8		OFFS		Company1				(\$2.00)	V		10/28/2009	10/28/200	9	1 employe	
	1003575	******777	0		OFFE		Comonnul					27 :: K		10/20/2000	10/20/200	n	1 amplana	- 7

FILTER ROW MENU

Selecting this filter button opens a small window which allows you to select one of nine filter conditions. Selecting a value will create a filter for that column and only criteria which meet your selection will be returned within the grid. Remember, regardless of the number of pages returned, your filter is applied to all pages within the returned data set.

Tran ID	Account	- C	heck No	F I	Ref 6	2	Name		IHID B	2	Debit		Credit		Actio	in 🗹	Туре		Check Date		Eff Date	🖻 S	ic 🗉	Addec By		Clone	
ę		9		9	5	2		9	5	2		Ŷ		7		Ŷ		Ŷ		ę.		9	Ŷ		9		
1223562	*****777	8		ē	FFS.	. C	ompany1		1.000		\$0.	-	Begins	with	1				10/28/20	109	10/28/20	09	1	emplo	y		le le
1223563	*****544	4		Ť.		te	est	ſ		1	\$0.	1	Conta	ns		dm)-			10/28/20	009	10/28/20	09	1	emplo	y		1
1223564	*****777	8		C	FFS	. C	ompany1				(\$45.0		Ends	with		r L			10/28/20	009	10/28/20	09	1	emplo	y		
1223572	*****445	6				je	eff dunham				(\$3.0		Equals						10/28/20	009	10/28/20	09	1	emplo	y		
1223573	*****777	8		C	FFS	C	ompany1				\$0.		Doesn		In				10/28/20	009	10/28/20	09	1	emplo	y		
		Stere		C	FFS	C	ompany1				\$0.								10/28/20	009	10/28/20	09	1	emplo	y,		
	*****777	And and		C	FFS	C	ompany1				(\$2.0		Is less	than					10/28/20	009	10/28/20	09	1	emplo	y		
1223575	*****777	8		C	FFS	C	ompany1				\$0.		Is less	than	ore	qual t	0		10/28/20	009	10/28/20	09	1	emplo	y		
1223276	******545	54		2	0 of	0 V	Veekly Tue				(\$4.0		Is grea	ater t	than			cur	10/6/20	009	10/6/20	09	1	emplo	y		1
													Is grea	ater t	than (or eau	ual to									12	
ount = 32											(\$547	25	-	7				1									
First Prev	Page 1	c	of 2 1	Vext	L	ast							Tota	Reco	ords: 3	12					5	lecor	ds pe	r page:	25		Y
Show Customizat	ion Window					[Admin Settin	105	Res	set G	and 🗸				1	Collag	ice All	Eve	and All					Ex	nel E	xport	5

SORT INDICATOR

The column's current sort order is indicated by a small black triangle displayed in the column header's right edge. Click the column's header to sort data against a data column or change the column's sort order. To sort data against multiple columns, click column headers with the <SHIFT> key pressed down.

Tran ID		Account		Check No		Ref	-	Name		HID 🖂	Debit 🖂	Credit		Action	+ T)	rpe 🔺 🗖	Check Date	💌 E	Eff Date 🗄	sc 🗉	Added By	Clor
	7		Ŷ		9		2		9	Ŷ	Ŷ		9	4	2	9		7	8	9		Ŷ
122358	2	******77	78		1	OFFS.	c	Company1			\$0.00	\$1	.00	Credit	c	D	10/28/2	009 1	0/28/200	9 1	empiloy	
122356	3	*****54	44				t	est			\$0.00	\$45	5.00	Credit	CC	D	10/28/2	2009 1	0/28/200	9 1	employ	📭
122357	13	******77	78		1	OFFS.	c	Company1			\$0,00	\$29	00.0	Credit	CC	D	10/28/2	2009 1	0/28/200	9 1	employ	See.

ADJUST COLUMN WIDTH

To adjust the width of a column, place your mouse between two columns (right of the column you wish to expand) until your mouse pointer turns into a double-ended arrow. Once the arrow is present, click with your left mouse button and drag the column to the right. Column width adjustments are only saved to the user preferences if another action has been taken in the grid following. Example: If you change column widths, then sort.. your column width settings will be saved for that grid and will be applied each time you view that specific grid. However, if you adjust column widths and do not sort by a column, the column width modification will not be applied to that grid going forward. Automatic retention of column widths without the need to take additional actions in the grid will be added in a future release of ACHNow.

rag a column	header here t	o group b	y that	column														
Tran ID	Account 🖻	Check -	Ref	Name	🔺 🖻 IHID		Debit 🖻	Credit		Action 🖻	Туре	•	Check Date		Eff Date 🖻	sc	- Added By	Clor
9	9	9		9	•	9	9		Ÿ	7		9		Ţ	7		7	Ţ.

FILTER ROW

This filter allows end-users to filter data by entering text within its cells. As you can see below, the letters 'je' are typed in the Name column within the filter row cell. All items which meet the criteria are dynamically displayed and the others have been removed. You can filter in this manner for text columns. To remove the filter you have three options. Each will restore your prior view.

ran ID	Account		Check No		Ref B	l Nam	e 🔺	- інп		Debit		Credit	A A	ction 🖻	Туре		Check Dat	e E	Eff Date	e 🖭	sc 🖻	Added By	Clone
Ŷ		T		9	3	jel		?	Ŷ		2		0	7		8		\$		T	9	\$	
1223572	*****44	56				jeff d				(\$3.	.00)	\$0.0	0 De	ebit	CCD		10/28	3/2009	10/28/2	2009		employ	1
1223570	******01	11				jeff d	Inham		- 11	\$0	0.00	\$1.0	O Cr	redit	PPD		10/28	3/2009	10/28/2	2009	1	employ	
1223571	*****54	54				jeff d	Inham			¢n	00.0	¢2.0	0 0-	in the	000		10/20	2000	10/28/2	0000	1	employ	R
		en al la									1.00	\$2.0	u cr	redit	PPD		10/20	572005	10/28/2	2009	1	employ	
[JEs		redit	IPPD		10/28	57 2005	10/28/2	2009		employ	
= 3 rst Pre	V Page 1					Last					.00)	^{یں} \$3.	00 2	edit			10/20	57 2005				page: 25	[3

- You can simply backspace within the cell to remove the text you entered.
- You can deselect the Filter Control check box in the lower-left corner
- You can click the 'Clear' hyperlink in the lower-right corner
- Note: Filters are not retained after logging out of ACHNow or exiting the application. This is intentional to save confusion.

SUMMARY ROW

The summary row aggregates the total row count as well as debit and credit dollar amounts and corresponding counts. As you filter data, your summary will reflect only the totals for the contents of the grid.

FILTER CONTROL

The Filter Control allows you to build complex filter criteria with an unlimited number of filter conditions, combined by logical operators. You can open the Filter Control by clicking the image or filter expression link displayed within the Filter Bar.

First	Prev	Page	1	of 1
9	[Name	1 Is lik	e 'ie?	6'

ADD/REMOVE CONDITIONS

To create and customize filter criteria, use the "and" buttons.

CHANGE A COLUMN IN A FILTER CONDITION

To change a condition's column, invoke the column list and choose the required column.

CHANGE AN OPERATOR IN A FILTER CONDITION

To change a condition's operator, invoke the operator list and choose the required operator.

EDIT A CONDITION'S VALUE

To edit a condition's value, click the 'And' hyperlink. To discard changes to the value and close the active edit box, press ESC.

			heck Filest							Check	8. wilei	eff pasa (*)							
	100	10000110	No la			wet 🐡				Date	100		-			Denec			
																			117
		*******	101	PBC	I Wat	ter Builder			a succession	and an India beat	× 19	7/31/2009	1	employ		×		1939	
		No. 50 (4) 30 (11 (12) + 3.5	101	PBC	An	d O					29	7/31/2009		employ		*			
5			101	PBC	12	And		ь 😳			99	7/31/2009		employ				500 A	
1 X				PBC	0	Or					09	7/31/2009		employ					-
					۹	Not And													
Ç	ount = 17					Not Or			ОК	Canc	el								
		age 1 a	f2 Next	Last	1.	Add Grou	p								Resort		ige: 10		
1	Type) is	like webnie			-	Add Con	lition											Ch	
Show	Customization			Adm	n Set 🗙	Remove											Excel	Export	

RECORDS PER PAGE

This selection allows you to increase/decrease the number of rows that are displayed within the current grid. Modifying this selection will not change the default records per page displayed in other grids. However, your selection is retained for that specific grid. This allows flexibility in the event you want to see a smaller/larger number of rows for only specific report grids. Rather than setting your default records per page to a higher number, remember, regardless of the number of pages returned, your filter is applied to all pages within the returned data set.

	Clone		Adde By	SC 🖭		Eff Date
		\$		9	Ŷ	
3	1	y	emplo	1	009	10/28/20
		y	emplo	1	009	10/28/20
		y	emplo	1	009	10/28/20
)		25 50 100 200 500 100				
		25	0308	ds per	Reco	

CLEAR

The clear hyperlink removes all applied filters and restores the data to its prior state before the filters were applied.

SHOW CUSTOMIZATION WINDOW

The customization window allows you to add/remove columns from the grid. Selecting this button will open a modal window that displays the available columns that can be added. To add a column, click on the column name button within the window and drag it to the header bar. A small white arrow will appear that indicates the position where the new column will be inserted. Once you have it in the desired position, simply drop the field name into the header.

To remove a column, the same logic applies. Open the customization window. Click on a column within the header and drag it to the customization window. The column will be removed and grid will refresh automatically.

Tran ID	Account 🖃	Name THI		Debit 💌	Credit 🔄	Action	🖃 Туре
Ŷ	9	Ref	÷		Ŷ		~
1223961	*****4545	Cherice		(\$1.00)	\$0.00	Debit	PPD
1223590	*****4545	Cherice		Field Chooser	*0.00	Debit	PPD
1223562	*****7778	Company1		Field Chooser		Credit	CCD
1223564	*****7778	Company1		Amoun	t 🗈	Debit	CCD
1223573	*****7778	Company1		Check N	o 🔄] Credit	CCD
1223574	*****7778	Company1		Ref	¥	Iredit	CCD
1223576	*****7778	Company1		4.977		Debit	CCD
1223575	*****7778	Company1				Credit	CCD
1223572	******4456	jeff dunham				Debit	CCD
1	P. Contract	History and the					- Anna

PAGING

Paging allows you to navigate from one page to another with ease. You can utilize the First, Prev, Next, and Last buttons as well as free-type page numbers to jump to a specific page immediately. The page indicator allows you to see how many pages were returned and your current page location.

RESET GRID

This function allows you to reset your grid to the Default Settings after you have sorted, filtered, and rearranged columns. You will also see selections in the drop-menu for Admin Settings and MP Settings. These are used to assume the grid layout settings as saved by MP or an Admin user for the merchant account under which you are logged in. In order for these settings to be applied, the Admin or MP user would first have needed alter their grid layout for a specific report. Only then can those settings be assumed by other merchant users.

EXPAND / COLLAPSE ALL

These buttons are only available when grouping is in place. Selecting will allow you to expand/collapse all groups within a grid.

EXPORT

Each grid offers the ability to Export your data in PDF, XLS, CSV, or RTF. Using this function will export the data in **exactly** the same manner as it is displayed within the grid and will export all rows in the data set even when multiple pages have been returned. An example as follows:

You have added/removed columns, applied filters, modified the sort order, and 7 pages are now present as displayed within the paging indicator. There is no need to increase your records per page. On export you will receive all 7 pages sorted and filtered as displayed within the grid. Most importantly, to receive the data in this exact format you **must** use the Export option. Selecting the Print Report button will not reflect any modifications you apply to the grid.

Tran ID		Consumer Name		IHID	•	SEC Code		Bank ABA		Bank Acct		Check		Check Date	• 📼	Check Type		Batch ID		Debit	•	Credit	F	Ref (-
	Ŷ		Ŷ		•		Ŷ		♥		Ŷ		Ŷ		(1)		Ŷ		7		Ŷ		9	1	9
12237	18	jones				opD -		****	-	******	3	1		11/6/	2009	Consu		28	11	(\$35.0	(00	\$0.0	00 8	of 1	0
¢]				_					1	11													xcel	~	>
Count = 1)	11										(\$35.	1	\$ PI	1000		
Count = 1	€V.	Page 1		of	. 1	Vext		Last	,	0		. (J. 24	Tot	al Recor	rds: 1					(\$35, Record	1	S PI	DF		
<] Count = 1 First Pre Show Custom				of	. 1	-		Last in Seti		4-4-2-	et Gr	id 🖂	Tot	al Recor		Sollapse	All	Ехра	and A	Record	1	S PC er pa R R	DF SV TF	Expo	~

PRINT REPORT

This option prints reports in their original format and is not influenced by any grid modifications that you have applied (as indicated above (**Export Format Types**)). The report formats that are available vary by grid. Simply make your selection from the drop-menu and click Print Report. Please take note of the following:

To print reports in AchNow the following Internet Explorer settings are required:

- 1. Assign the AchNow Website to the Trusted sites zone:
- 2. While logged on to AchNow select "Tools\Internet Options" in Internet Explorer.
- 3. "Internet Options" will open. From "Internet Options" select the "Security" tab and click on the "Trusted Sites" icon.
- 4. Then click on the "Sites" button to open the "Trusted sites" dialog box. If there is no entry for "<u>https://www.achnow.us</u>" in the "Websites" list click on the "Add" button to add AchNow to the Websites list.
- 5. Click the "Close" button to close the "Trusted sites" dialog box
- 6. Modify the Security Settings for the Trusted Sites to allow prompting for file downloads:
- 7. While in the Security tab of Internet Options, with the Trusted Sites icon selected, click on the "Custom Level" button
- 8. This will open a dialog box for "Security Settings Trusted Sites Zone"
- 9. Select "Medium (default)" from the "Reset to" drop-down box and click on the "Reset" button to reset all settings to the default Trusted Sites security settings.

- 10. Now scroll through the Settings to locate "Automatic prompting for file downloads", which is in the "Downloads" section and select the "Enable" option.
- 11. Printing of reports within AchNow should function correctly now. If not, please insure that your Pop-Up blocker is disabled.

Tran ID	Consumer Name	E IH	D 🖻	SEC Code	E	Bank ABA		Bank Acct		Check No		Check Date	• 🖂	Check Type		Batch ID		Debit		Credit	E	Ref		
	*	9	8		8		Ŷ		9		Ŷ		Ŷ		Ŷ		Ŷ		9		9		\$	
12237	iones			PPD -			**	*****	3			11/6/	2009	Consu		28	811	(\$35.	00)	\$0.	.00	8 of	10	K
1	PDE Format																	-						15
) ount = 1	PDF Format Excel Format							^										(\$35.	00)	\$0	.00		>	1
ount = 1	Excel Format CSV No Head	ers For									Tot	tal Recor	rds: 1						1		0	5		
ount = 1 First Pre	Excel Format CSV No Head CSV No Head	ers For ers Full	Info F								Tot	tal Recor	CARACTER .	- 1				Recor	1	er page	0 21 2	5		
ount = 1 First Pre	Excel Format CSV No Head	ers For ers Full aders Fo	Info F rmat	8			Ĩ		et G	rid 🗸	Tot	tal Recor	CARACTER .	Collapse	All	Expi	and .	Recor	1	er page	0 21 2			

SCROLL BARS

Both horizontal and vertical scroll bars will be available to you when the grid exceeds the size of the grid frame. You can also use the scroll button on your mouse as well as the arrow keys on your keyboard to navigate inside the grid.

THE HOME PAGE

The Home Page is an easy access point for all transactional activity within ACHNowTM. Your user name is located in the upper left hand corner of the screen. Directly below you can see what Account ID you are logged in under (for those users who have access to multiple merchant accounts).



Note: To allow a larger viewing area as you navigate through the site, you can hide/show the list and tab menus by clicking the << >> icons located under the Merchant List. This is available for both List Bar and Tab modes. As well, you can expand/collapse the header bar by clicking the <<>> icons under the Other Applications drop-menu.

	ployee_u	-					Home Logout	(a
ID: 1007				Hom	e		Other Applic	ations
ny1 (1007)	×						ACHNow	
Menu								Hid
1							Transaction Overview	
La Enter	r all your tra	insactions fo	or the day:				Ready To Process	3
	0.0		20.00	15	-	6.0	Batch Waiting	8
	200					20	Web Init Trans	0
CCD Credit	CCD Credit	CCD Debit	CCD Debit	ENR Automated	PPD Credit	PPD Credit	Suspended Batch Trans	(
	Recurring		Recurring	Enrollment		Recurring	Returns to Review	0
	20			23			Unauthorized Returns	0
PPD Debit	PPD Debit	TEL Debit	WEB Debit	WEB Debit			Imported Invalid ABA Trans	0
	Recurring			Recurring			Other Invalid Imported Records	4
2							Corrections	0
2. When	n you've fini	shed adding	j all of you	r transactions	s, review th	tem via	Future Payments	0
the Pre-Tr	ansmission I	Report.					Active Payment Plans	0
							Sent to Processor	0
3. When		infind that a	II of contractor			and the	Sent to ACH	13
			a or your u	ransactions a	re correct,	send the	Items Paid/Settled	7
transaction	is for proces	ssing.					Current Month to Date	66
							Last Month	51

The header displays permanent information such as your Company logo, Company slogan, and Company name.

There are three user entry modes available in ACHNowTM;

- Default,
- Simple and
- Novice.

The Default Mode illustrated above lists each allowed transaction type individually on the Home Page, while the Simple Mode will display two drop downs; one for EFT Credit and one for EFT Debit. When one of these drop downs is selected the allowed transactions types are listed by the account types allowed. The Novice Mode imitates the links found in the legacy version of ACHNowTM. The User Entry Mode is configured from the Add/Edit User screen.

The Main section of the Home page contains Hyperlink shortcuts to help you navigate ACHNow[™] and to facilitate the submission of transactions. The hyperlink shortcuts that are displayed and available are dependent upon the permissions granted to the user by the Merchant Processor and/or Merchant.

To the right of the Main section is the Transaction Overview grid.

TRANSACTION OVERVIEW

The Transaction Overview grid displays a summary of each Transaction category. It also displays a total amount for each Transaction category. This overview may also be used to obtain a list of transactions contained within a particular category by clicking on the category total.

Transaction Overview				
Ready To Process	3			
Batch Waiting	8			
Web Init Trans	0			
Suspended Batch Trans	0			
Returns to Review	0			
Unauthorized Returns	0			
Imported Invalid ABA Trans	0			
Other Invalid Imported Records	4			
Corrections	0			
Future Payments	0			
Active Payment Plans	0			
Sent to Processor	0			
Sent to ACH	13			
Items Paid/Settled	7			
Current Month to Date	66			
Last Month	51			

From this list a more detailed view of any particular transaction category can be obtained by simply clicking on the category total amount. The resulting screen can be used to review and verify all information for that particular category. Depending upon the type of transaction selected and the status in which the transaction is in, you will be given option buttons to perform certain functions.

READY TO PROCESS

This screen displays transactions that have been entered into ACHNowTM via File Import and/or the Add Transaction screen that have not yet been 'Sent to Processor'. This grid as well as Web Init Trans, Suspended Batch, and Future Payments allow you to view address details if they were provided for a transaction. You can easily identify which transactions have address information as there is an expand "+" icon next to the selector box. To view the address, click on the "Detail" radio button at the bottom of the screen and expand the transaction.

	Tran ID	Account	Check No	Re	ef 🖃 þ	lame 🖃	HID 🖻	Туре 💌	Debit	E C	redit 🔄	Action	D	neck 👻 🖻 late	Eff Date	sc sc	B	/ E	Edit	Delete	Clone	Scheo
	9		8	9	Ŷ	9	T	8		Ŷ	8		~	9		9	9	8				
	1387439	******		1	01	lew		PPD	\$107.	.22	\$0.00	Debit		6/1/2010	6/1/20	010	1 emp	oloy		×	6	-
Add	ress 1			A	ddress	2				City				Stat	e		Count	try			Zip	
350	00 US 19 N			S	uite 51	000				Hold	ay			EL.			Unite	d Stat	es		3469	1
	1387443	******	**	54	0V	Veeki		CCD	\$4,	.00	\$0.00	Debit		6/1/2010	6/1/2	010	1 emp	oloy		×	h	
¢	Count = 20								\$2,646	5 15	\$5.00 5											
First	Prev Page	1	of 1 Ne	xt	Last						Tota	al Record	s: 20						Recor	ds per pa	ige: 25	5
show Cu	stomization Wi	indow	11	Ac	min Se	ttings	Reset G	irid 🗸			Colla	pse All	Exp	and All		Exp	ort Det	ail: N	Vone	Y	Excel	Export

In addition, you can export these address details. In the lower-right corner, there is a combo box to select the Export Detail type.

- None = No detail rows will be exported
- Expanded = Only those detail rows that are expanded will be exported
- All = All detail rows will be exported

Upon processing transactions, an email will be sent to both the Merchant Processor and the Merchant.

WEB INIT TRANS

This screen displays transactions that have been entered using Pay by Check. For Merchant Processors or Site Users, any new Web Init Trans will automatically be synchronized from Processor when the user navigates to the Home Page.

SUSPENDED BATCH TRANS

This screen displays transactions that have been rejected by the Federal Reserve for one reason or another. You also have the option to move them back to the Ready To Process queue after making your corrections.

RETURNS TO REVIEW

This screen displays returns -- transactions which you originated and could not be collected for one reason or another. Based on the permissions issued by your Processor you will be able to Edit, Delete, Clone, or Resubmit your returns. Normally these transactions are returned within 2 days but some returns can take up to 60 days. You can also choose to 'Hide' items shown on this screen. Even if you hide items, they will still be reflected on Return Reports. *Accounts where Auto-Resubmit is enabled in the Processor Application will not see their R01/R09 returns in this window.*

In addition, returns can be displayed by date criteria. You can select your 'default' date length by making your selection from the 'Date Span to use in Trans Overview' drop menu. You can choose 1 week, 30 days, or 90 days as your default. Each time you return to this screen this is the default time period that transactions will be displayed for. You can also search using a specific date range (within the last 90 days).

RESUBMIT RETURNS

You can resubmit returns which meet the following criteria:

- You have the necessary permission to resubmit returned items
- The returned transaction must have an R01 or an R09 return code
- The returned transaction is not a C21 transaction
- The returned transaction Submit Count is less than or equal to '2'
- The ABA/Account Number combination does not exist in Revoke Returns
- The following rules then apply to the resubmitted item:
- If the transaction being resubmitted has an addenda, the newly created transaction will have an addenda.
- The newly created transaction will have the Submit Count of the original transaction plus '1'.
- If the Merchant's NSF Fee is greater than \$0.00, a fee transaction will also be created for each transaction resubmitted. The Sec Code for the fee transaction will be CCD if the returned transaction is a CCD and a WEB if the returned transaction is a WEB. Otherwise it will be a PPD transaction.

UNAUTHORIZED RETURNS

This screen displays all unauthorized returns. These returns cannot be resubmitted. You can however, Hide them once reviewed.

IMPORTED INVALID ABA TRANS

This screen displays transactions that have been imported into ACHNow[™] and contain invalid ABA numbers. The Transactions will remain in this category until they have been corrected and re-submitted.

OTHER INVALID IMPORTED RECORDS

This screen displays transactions that have been imported into the system that do not follow the specified file format. Transactions will remain in this category until they have been corrected and re-submitted.

CORRECTIONS

This screen displays transactions that are corrections. These transactions were originated by you. The Bank is returning them as corrections to notify you of a change in the account information they received. Your corrections will appear when you receive returns. It is the Merchant's responsibility to review the correction information and make sure the transaction does not get originated again with incorrect information. You can also choose to 'Hide' items shown on this screen. Even if you hide items, they will still be reflected on Correction Reports.

FUTURE PAYMENTS

This screen displays one-time transactions that have a date in the future.

ACTIVE PAYMENT PLANS

This screen displays payment plans which are still pending and have not yet completed.

SENT TO PROCESSOR

This screen displays transactions that have been sent to the Processor with a Submit Date for the current day. To view prior submit dates, (within the last 3 months) please enter a date range after selecting this hyperlink. In addition, you can elect to search by Check Date. In the event you need to locate transactions older than 3 months, please utilize ACHNow Reports. Keep in mind, transactions that have already been Sent to ACH will not be returned in your search results. Only items currently pending in Processor will be displayed.

SENT TO ACH

This screen displays all transactions that have been sent to the Federal Reserve with a Submit Date for the current day. Once your Processor has created an ach file, these items will move from 'Sent to Processor' status to this category. To view prior submit dates, (within the last 3 months) please enter a date range after selecting this hyperlink. In addition, you can elect to search by Check Date. In the event you need to locate transactions older than 3 months, please utilize ACHNow Reports.

ITEMS PAID/SETTLED

This screen displays transactions that have originated from your system with a Settle Date for the current day and have not yet returned. "Paid" indicates the merchant has been paid. "Unpaid" indicates the money has been collected from the consumer but the merchant has not yet been paid. To view prior settle dates, (within the last 3 months) please enter a date range after selecting this hyperlink. In addition, you can elect to search by Check Date. In the event you need to locate transactions older than 3 months, please utilize ACHNow Reports. By default, this report will show only today's settlement transactions.

CURRENT MONTH TO DATE

This screen displays transactions you've originated for the current month (excluding transactions which are in status Sent to Processor).

LAST MONTH

This screen displays transactions that you originated last month (excluding transactions which are still in a status of Sent to Processor).

SYNC LEGACY TRANSACTIONS

This button allows Merchant Processors / Site Users to synchronize processor transaction values (i.e. NetSettleID, SettleDate, etc) for existing transaction rows that were synced initially but whose value has since changed. (This process also runs automatically overnight.) In addition, clicking this button also brings over all legacy transactions and places them (with their offset) in the Sent to Processor queue in the Transactions Overview grid.

REFRESH TRANS OVERVIEW

This button allows Merchants that are set to "Manually Refresh Trans Overview" in the Add/Edit Merchant screen to refresh the Transaction Overview grid on the Home Page. The user can mouse-over the button at any time to see the last time a manual refresh was performed.

The button will have a background color of **red** (indicating a refresh should be performed) when any of the following occur:

- When a transaction is added or deleted
- When a file is imported
- When transaction(s) are processed
- When a legacy sync is performed, either by clicking the sync legacy transaction button or by automatic syncing upon login (which syncs processed transactions) or each visit to the introduction page (which syncs un-processed transactions).
- When Web Initiated or Suspended Batch Transactions are moved to Ready to Process

MERCHANT MENU (GROUPING)

The Merchant drop-menu displays the Merchant under which the user resides. In addition, the User Name as well as their Account ID is displayed. Those who have been given permissions to access additional Merchants will be able to select them using this menu. To access another Merchant, simply select them from the menu. You will be directed to their home page after doing so.

Once you have selected a Merchant, all data viewed and any actions taken will be performed under that THAT MERCHANT'S ACCOUNT using their Account ID (not as yourself or under your Account ID). You can perform actions under that merchant account in the same manner you would perform them while logged in under your merchant account. To establish/modify this feature, Admin users can do so from the Users Tab via the Merchants field (Shown in a later chapter under 'Users')

Refresh Trans Overview

Refresh Trans Overview

You're logged in as: John O. Account ID: 1005	
Affirmative Technologies	V.

MERCHANT SELECTION GRID

The Merchant Selection Grid icon is located to the right of the Merchant Menu. This icon is available to Merchant Processors, Site Users, and users with access to multiple merchant accounts. Once selected a grid will be displayed which allows you locate merchant accounts using a filters, sorting, etc. with ease. By default, the grid is sorted by Merchant Name.

STBMP(63)	×	Q.
K C		
越 Home	\$	Open Merchant Selection Grid
Home		Aud Merchant
 Add Merchant 		2
Merchant List		List Merchants

X

elect	Account ID	ME ID	Merchant		ACH Name	- 2	Prefix	5
	9	9		Ŷ		8		9
•	1007	53	Company1		Company1		Col	
0	1005	54	Company2		Company2		Co2	
0	1030	196	Credit Hold		Credit Hold		stb	
0	1003	116	Demo Fee		DemoFee		STB	
0	1022	121	GL Merchant		GL Merchan	t	STB	
0	1038	191	Legacy Merchant		Legacy Mercha	ant	STB	
0	1036	179	Merchant 1061		Merchant 100	51	STB	
0	1037	181	Merchant 1061		Merchant 100	51	STB	6
First	Prev Page	1 of 1	Next Last	Total Re	cords: 10		Records per page: 25	i 🛛
Show (Customization Wi	ndow	Default Set	tings R	eset Grid 🗸		Excel [Export
			Select	Cano	el			

Merchant Selector

HELP

ACHNow Help is located to the right of the Logout link in the page header and offers valuable tips and answers to frequently asked questions.

OTHER APPLICATIONS

This menu allows you to navigate between ACHNow and other applications which you have access to. Selecting one of these applications from the menu will take you directly to the application using your same login credentials, but without the need to manually log in.

H	lome	Logout	ŀ	telp	
	Last Login:	12/29/2010	10:38:37	AM EST	Г
		Other Applic	cations		
	ACHNow				\mathbf{v}

Directly above this menu you will see the date and timestamp of your most recent login to ACHNow. This visibility is provided in the event your login has been used to gain access ACHNow by someone other than yourself.

TRANSACTION FLOW

STEP 1 - ADD TRANSACTION

From the home page, select a transaction hyperlink. You will be brought to the Add Transaction Entry Screen for that particular transaction type.

* Transaction Type:	PPD Debit		*	
* Routing Transit:				
* Account Number:				
* Check Type:	Consumer Checkin	9	1	
* Check Amount:				
* Eff. Date:	8/10/2007		*	
Reference:]
* Consumer Name:				
Address 1:				
Address 2:				
City:		State:	*	S
* Country:	United States	Zip:		S .3
Phone:				
Email:				
ID:				
In-House ID:				
	Notify	Account Holde	г	
	_	Add		
		Muu		
	* Indicates	Required Field		

TRANSACTION TYPE

Select the transaction types from the dropdown window.

Please note: If you have only one Transaction type allowed the Transaction Type drop-down will not be displayed. In the case of Novice Entry Mode, all transaction types will be displayed, but you will be prompted if you do not have permissions to the transaction type selected. Please refer to Appendix A for a list of Transaction Type definitions.

For users who have access to Payment Plans, you will see an icon to the right of the Transaction Type menu which allows you to make the payment recurring and will take you to the Add Payment Plan screen. This icon is only available for PPD, CCD, and WEB transaction types.

* Transaction Type:	PPD Debit	💌 👪
---------------------	-----------	-----

ROUTING TRANSIT

Enter the ABA Bank Routing Transit No. (Found on the bottom of a check).

ACCOUNT NUMBER

Enter the bank account number (Found on the bottom of a check). A minimum of 3 digits are required for Checking Accounts and 2 for Savings Accounts.

CHECK TYPE

Select Checking or Savings

CHECK AMOUNT

Enter the amount of your Check. Note: If you are adding a \$0.00 transaction (applicable for credits & debits only) a pre-note will be created. You will not be able to add another transaction for that ABA/AccountNo combination for 6 business days per NACHA rules. If after 6 business days the item has not returned, you will then be able to add a transaction for the ABA/AccountNo combination.

EFFECTIVE DATE

Select the Effective Date from the Calendar (defaults to current day's date). Please note: The date input field also varies based on the transaction type. For ARC, POP and RCK transaction types the date input will be for Check Date. For the remaining transaction types (other than ENR, which will not have a date input field) the date input displayed on the screen will be for Effective Entry Date.

Only merchants that have "Send to Ready to Process by Effective/Check Date" selected (assigned by the Merchant Processor) will have the following logic flow for their transactions:

This logic applies to ACHNow Add/Edit Transaction, Add/Edit Payment Plan, and ACHNow Web Service Insert/Modify Transactions:

For SEC Codes using Check Date (RCK, ARC, POP, BOC, and C21), Check Date is required on form					
Send to Ready to Process by Effective/Check Date" selected	Set Effective Date to the Release Date specified on form Set Check Date and Effective Entry Date to Release Date + 1 Business Day				
Send to Ready to Process by Effective /Check Date" not selected	Set Check Date and Effective Entry Date to Check Date specified on form Set Effective Date to Check Date - 1 Business Day				

For SEC Code PPD or CCD Credit Loan	
Send to Ready to Process by Effective /Check Date" selected	Set Effective Date to Effective Entry Date - 1 Business Day
Send to Ready to Process by Effective /Check Date" not selected	Set Effective Date to Effective Entry Date - 2 Business Days

For All Other SEC Codes, which use Effective Entry Date becomes Transaction Date for these SEC Code	Date (Effective Entry Date is required on form) Set Check Date to today (Check es)
Send to Ready to Process by Effective /Check Date" selected	(Effective Date will be used on form instead of Effective Date) Set Effective Date to Effective Date specified on form Set Effective Entry Date to Effective Date + 1 Business Day
Send to Ready to Process by Effective /Check Date" not selected	Set Effective Entry Date to Effective Entry Date specified on form Effective Date For Debits - Set to Effective Entry Date - 1 Business Day For Credits - Set to Effective Entry Date - 2 Business Days

REFERENCE

Enter a reference for the transaction if desired Consumer Name - Enter the Consumer's Name

Please note: If the transaction type selected is a "business" transaction type, the Name label will be changed to "Company Name".

ADDRESS ROLODEX ICON

Address 1:		Address Mate	ching - When
Address 2:			transaction, the
City:		address match attempt to fin	ning function will
State:	Zip: Phone:	either one of t	
Email:		field values; A	
		Account Numb Consumer Nam is found, the s	ne. If a Match

ADDRESS 1 - / ADDRESS 2

Enter the address

CITY / STATE / ZIP

Enter the City and State location followed by zip code. Phone - Consumer's phone number

EMAIL

Consumer's email address

ID

Enter the Tax ID (field present only for certain transaction types) In-House ID – Enter the In – House ID

NOTIFY ACCOUNT HOLDER

Selecting this check box requires you enter an email address for the consumer. If selected, an email will be generated to the email address specified with the Amount and Effective Date you have indicated. Note: If cloning a transaction that was entered without an email address, this check box will not be selectable. Below is an example of the email the client will receive:

From: test@affirmativeusa.com [mailto:test@affirmativeusa.com] Sent: Monday, August 25, 2008 6:55 AM To: test@affirmativeusa.com Subject: Transaction From Company1

Please Note: A transaction from Company1 for the following amount: \$10.53, was authorized to be credited to your account on or about: 8/25/2008.

© Regal Technologies, LLC – All Rights Reserved

information will be used to populate the screen.

REQUIRED FIELDS

When adding transactions the fields marked with an asterisk '*' are required fields. Make sure you have completed all required fields and click the Add button to enter the transaction. Once the transaction is added it will be placed in Ready to Process status.

STEP 2 - PRE-TRANSMISSION REPORT

The Pre-Transmission Report screen can be accessed from 3 locations:

- 1. The Home Page Pre-Transmission link (Step 2),
- 2. The Home Page Menu, or
- 3. The Reports Tab/List Menu.

ompany1 (1007	1		V					-					Report	-				ACHNow		_
Stopany 1 (1007	/		0.000															Actinosi		_
Drag a col	umn	header	heri	e to group by that	column																_
Tran ID	2	SEC		Consumer Name		IHID		Bank ABA		Bank Acc	t 🖂	Check Date		Check 🖃	Debit		Credit		Ref 🖻	Status 6	2
	3		Ŷ		9		9		Ŷ		9		9	2		9		9		5	2
123		PPD		Test Transaction 1				*****	2	*****5	455	11/4/2	009	Consum	(\$1	.00)	\$C	3.00		New Tr	
122	23713	TEL		Test Transaction 2		(management)		*****		*****6(566	11/4/2	2009	Consum	(\$2	.00)	\$0	0.00		New Tr	
						PDF I	Forma	at					^								3
4						Exce	Forn	nat													21
Count = 2						Exce	Opti	ional Form	nat						(\$:	3.00)	\$	0.00			
		1000				CSV I	No He	eaders Fo	orma	t						2					-
First 1	Prev	Page	1	of 1 Next	Last	CSVI	No He	eaders O	ption	hal Format			s; ;	2				R	ecords per page	: 25	~
Show Cust	omizal	tion Win	dow		Ad	m CSV	With I	Headers	Forn	nat		_		Collapse All	Expand	All			Ex	cel Expor	t
			-	1	17	CSV	With H	Headers	Opti	ional Format	ti i	6	~			1011124				L. S.	-
						PDF F	orma	at			Print	Report		Cancel							

GENERATE REPORTS IN SEVERAL FORMATS

You can choose to generate the report in several formats (with or without headers). In addition, you can select the Optional Format for either Excel or CSV. The optional format alters the order the columns are displayed in. (For long-time users of ACHNow, the columns are ordered in the same order as Legacy ACHNow).

Click the Print Report button and you will receive a File Download dialog box. Select Open to view the report or Save to save the report to a local directory on your workstation.



The Pre Transmission Report will display only transactions that are ready to be sent to your processor.

Pre-Transmission Report

2 Jasmin

Rittman, OH 44667 Phone: 727-772-9881

Tran ID	SEC Code	Consumer Name	In House ID	Bank ABA	Bank Acct.	Check No.	Check Date	Check Type	Debit	Credit	Reference	Status
51030	PPD	test transaction		123123123	*****8779		05/19/2009	Consumer Checking	\$5.00	\$0.00		New Transactor
51031	TEL	test transaction 2		123123123	*****8779		05/19/2009	Consumer Checking	\$10.00	\$0.00		New Transactor

Once your review is completed, proceed to Ready to Process.

STEP 3 - READY TO PROCESS

The Ready to Process screen can be accessed from 3 locations:

- 1. The Home Page Transaction Grid,
- 2. The Home Page Step 3, or
- 3. The Processing Tab/List Menu.

	ogged in as ID: 1007	s: (employ	se_L	1		P*						Rea	dy t	o Pr	0	PASS						1	0	ther Ap	plication	ons
ompar	ny1 (1007)	ŝ	_	~									nee	ay c	••••	0	0000						ſ	ACHNow	-		_
l.								Click t	he 'P	roce	ess' I	but	ton belo	w to pro	cess	all	transactio	ns se	lecte	d.							
Drag	a column h	ea	der her	e to	group	by t	that d	column																			
	Tran ID	P	Account	•	Check (No	ER	ef 🖃	Name	IHI	0 🖬	Туре		Debit 🖻	Credit 🕒	Action	1 🖻	Check - 🕞 Date	Eff (Date	• s	c 🖃	Added (By	E	lit Delet	e Clon	e Sche	d
	\$?		7	5	2	9		9	7		T	7	9		9	8			7	Ŷ	5	7				
	122371		*****					Test			TEL		(\$2.00)	\$0.00	Debit		11/4/2009	11/	4/200	9	1	employ.	. 1	×	喻		ľ
	122371	2				1		Test	89		66D	3	(\$1.00)	\$0.00	Debit	3	11/4/2009	11/	4/200)9	1	employ.		1 🗙	1		
<		_		_		_				_		_		un						_	_		_				>
	ount = 2												(\$3.00) 2	\$0.00												21.2	
First	Prev	Pag	ge 1		of 1	Nex	t I	Last						1	otal Re	cord	s: 2						Re	cords per (page:	25	×
Show	Customizati	ion '	Window	1				Adn	nin Sett	ings	R	eset	t Grid 🖂				Collapse A	1	Expand	i All					Exce	Expor	t
								10					Process		Void												
											N	um	ber of T	ransact	ions S	Sele	cted: 1										

The Ready to Process grid allows you to review the transactions entered in ACHNow. A detailed view of any transaction can be obtained by clicking on the Edit icon. In addition, those with the necessary permissions can select the Delete, Clone, or Schedule Icons where applicable.

TRAN ID

Within each grid, you will see the Tran ID for each transaction. Selecting this blue hyperlink will take you to the transaction's detail. Within that screen you also have the ability to print the details of the transaction.

EDIT

If Edit is selected you will be brought to the Edit Transaction screen. Modify information as desired and click the Update button when finished. Upon updating the information you will be returned to the grid.

DELETE

If Delete is selected you will be brought to the Delete Transaction screen. Select the check box to confirm the Deletion and click the Delete button.

CLONE

If Clone is selected you will be brought to the Add Transaction screen. Only the information contained in the following fields may be changed: Check Amount, Check Number, Check Date, Reference, Consumers Name, SSN and In – House ID. Make the desired changes and select the Add button to create another transaction.

SCHED

If Sched is selected you will be brought to the Add Recurring Transaction screen. Use this screen to enter Recurring Transactions. Please note that Recurring Transactions will be generated one business day early if they fall on holidays or weekends.

SELECTING WHICH TRANSACTIONS TO PROCESS

The Ready to Process grid contains the transactions that are ready to be sent to your processor. This grid also displays the total number of transactions, (all debit & credit totals) that can be batched and sent to the processor. The transactions that can be processed have a green check in the check box located on the left side of the view. You can deselect a transaction by clicking on this check box. You may deselect all the transactions selected by clicking on the icon in the header bar.

			Chock												Chack					00
	Tran ID	Account	No	Ref		lame 🖂	IHID 🖂	Type b	- 1	Debit 🗠	Cr	redit 🖂	Action		Date	- [-]	Eff Date	123	ic 🖂	1
XE	ect/Unselect	all rows on	the page	9	9	9	9	5	2	4		Ţ		Ŷ		9		9	T	C
		*****						TEL		(\$2.00)		\$0.00	Debit		11/4/2	009	11/4/20	09		
	1223712	tên cên nên spîn sên sên			Т	est		PPD		(\$1.00)	\$0.00	Debit		11/4/2	009	11/4/20	09	1	en

The deselected transaction(s) will not be included in the batch process.

VOID READY TO PROCESS TRANSACTIONS

In addition, you can void any transactions you do not wish to process, by selecting the checkmark icon and clicking the Void button.

PROCESS TRANSACTIONS

For those users who are only processing certain transactions and only want to include those specific transactions on their Pre-Transmission report, you will have the ability to run the Pre-Transmission report after clicking the Process button.

- 1. Click the Process button to process the transactions selected.
- 2. You will be directed to a confirmation grid which displays only the transactions selected for processing.
- 3. Clicking the Pre-Transmission Report button will produce a report containing only the transactions you have selected to process.
- 4. Enter your login password to process and click the Process button

	ID: 1007	: employee	_u	1				Rea	dy t	o Pro	CASS					Oth	er App	lication
Compa	ny1 (1007)		-					T.C.C	ay c		0035				AC	HNow		
5					Click the	Proc	cess' but	tton below	w to pro	cess all	transaction	s selected.						
	Tran ID	Account	Check No	Ref	Name	IHID	Туре	Debit	Credit	Action	Check Date	Eff Date	sc	Added By	Edit	Delete	Clone	Sched
							PPD		\$0.00	Debit	11/4/2009	11/4/2009				×	6	1
	1223713	der nier nier nier nier nier			Test		TEL	(\$2.00)	\$0.00	Debit	11/4/2009	11/4/2009	1	employ		×		
<									810									>
and the second second	Count = 2							(\$3.00)	\$0.00									10.75
Show	v Customizatio	on Window			Admin	Settings	s Rese	t Grid 🖂			Collapse All	Expand A	B				Excel	Export
		PDF Forma	.t		(P)	-Trance	mission Re	port	• Conf	mm Dag	sword: •••		Drow	cess	Cance			
		1.0			<u>[13</u>	C Hons	in a short i too		Com	ini rus	Sword.		FIU		Carree			
														Proces	s Trans	actions I	isted	
							Nun	ber of Ti	ansact	ions Sel	ected: 2							

Once you have entered your Password and selected the Process button, you will be returned to the Ready To Process grid. You can then generate the Transactions By Batch and Transmittal Register Reports.

	ogged in as ID: 1007	: employee	_u	1				Rea	dv t	Pro	cess			-		Oth	er App	lication
Compa	nyl (1007)		•]					Ree	ay c	0110	0033				AC	CHNow		
>		04				_				_								
	Tran ID	Account	Check No	Ref	Name	IHID	Туре	Debit	Credit	Action	Check Date	Eff Date	SC	Added By	Edit	Delete	Clone	Sched
		******			Test		TEL	(\$2.00)	\$0.00	Debit	11/4/2009	11/4/2009		employ				
C	Count = 1							(\$2.00)	\$0.00									
C	Count = 1				- g			1			P	11						
Show	v Customizati	on Window			Admir	n Settings	s Rese	t Grid 🗸 🗸			Collapse Al	Expand A	H.				Excel	Export
						Transac	tions By Ba	atch Drint	Processing	Report	< D	17						
							tions By B		riocesarig	and the second s		UL.						
						Contraction of the local division of the loc		1100.11011										

TRANSMITTAL REGISTER

The Transmittal Register report displays a summary of the transactions for a specific batch. This report is similar to the Pre-Transmission report however it displays only summary information for the transactions that were actually sent. This report is available when processing transactions, after importing a file, or after creating a reversal.

It may be required that this report be faxed to the bank prior to your transactions being completed. The fax number of the processor is printed on this report for convenience. This report can be used by those who use Net Settlements as well as those that do not.

	Company1 2 Jasmin
	Rittman, OH 44667
	Phone: 727-772-9881
	Fax: 727-772-9881
Amount (Debits):	\$1.00
Amount (Credits):	\$1.00
	05/19/2009
	Date
For Bank Use Only	
	Completed (Initials of Employee)
	Amount (Credits):

TRANSACTIONS BY BATCH REPORT

The Transactions by Batch report lists all transactions within a specific batch. Select the desired batch row from the window and click Print Report. In the event you navigate somewhere else in the application, the window will be automatically closed.

rag a column	n header he	re tr	a group	by that	colun	TIT)															
Tran ID	Batch ID	M	IHID [Sub Date		Consumer Name	R	tef 🖪	Chec No	< 🖂	Check Date	۰ 🖭	Bank ABA		Bank Acct		Status		Paid (RC	5
5	7	Ŷ	5	7	7		7	2	2	Ŷ		3		7		Ŷ		•	2	2	5
122371	3 2	810		11/4/	2009	Test Tran	s				11/4/	2009	****	4.4	* * * * *	*	Sent t		Unoal	d	1
						101				-										1.5	2
						00															
	1					00													Y	1.5	
] Count =	1 / Page 1		of 1	Next	Last				Total	Reco							ds per (6	•

© Regal Technologies, LLC – All Rights Reserved

TRANSACTIONS

The Transactions menu contains four sub-menu selections:

- Current Transactions,
- Add Transaction,
- Find Transactions and
- Pre-Transmission

CURRENT TRANSACTIONS

The Current Transactions grid displays all the Transactions that have been entered into ACHNow[™] via manual entry and or File Import that have not yet been 'Sent to Processor'.

	(1007)	6	~		100				-			14	nouv		ons					1	ACHNow			_
mpan	ny1 (1007)	ł																		e.	ACHINOW			-
-		No. 2 March			2.17																			_
Jrag	a column he	sader here	o gri	oup	DY I	that column	_			_					-11 - 22			-						
	Tran ID	Account	E P	lef i		Name		Туре		Debit	Crec	t 🗹	Action		Check Date	• 💌	Eff Date		sc 🖻	Edit	Delete	Clone	Sched	100
1	Ŷ		8		8		Ŷ		Ŷ		9	Ŷ		٢		Ŷ		Ŷ	Ŷ					
	1223713	*****54	55			Test Transaction 1		PPD		(\$1.0	<u>n)</u>	a aa	Debit		11/4/	2000	11/4/2	000	1		×			
All Ref	according to		GRAD FIL		1.95					(91.0	07	0.00	Deol			2005	44/14/2							
C	ount = 1							UNITED IN		(\$1.4		\$0.00				2005		0051					. 2	
C First	ount = 1	Page 1	of	1		xt Last						\$0.00 0		: 1	- 11)-1	2005					cords per t		2	
First	ount = 1	vage 1		1					set (\$0.00 0			ollapse Al		xpand All					page: 2	2	L

From this grid you can view, edit, clone, delete or schedule transactions.

EDIT

If Edit is selected you will be brought to the Edit Transaction screen. Modify information as desired and click the Update button when finished. Upon updating the information you will be returned to the grid.

DELETE

If Delete is selected you will be brought to the Delete Transaction screen. Select the check box to confirm the Deletion and click the Delete button.

CLONE

If Clone is selected you will be brought to the Add Transaction screen. Only the information contained in the following fields may be changed: Check Amount, Check Number, Check Date, Reference, Consumers Name, SSN and In – House ID. Make the desired changes and select the Add button to create another transaction.

SCHED

If Sched is selected you will be brought to the Add Recurring Transaction screen. Use this screen to enter Recurring Transactions. Please note that Recurring Transactions will be generated one business day early if they fall on holidays or weekends.

FIND TRANSACTIONS

The Find Transaction screen allows you to perform specific Transaction searches in ACHNowTM.

Current Transactions	Add Transa	action	Find Tran	sactions	Pre-Transmission
Transaction State:		Processed	⊙ ACH'd		
Select Merchant(s):	Company1 (100 Company2 (100) Credit Hold (103 DemoFee (1003)	5) 0)		< >	Select All De-Select All
Transaction Type:	ALL			~	
Routing Transit:					
Account Number:					
Check Type:				~	
Consumer/Company Name:				_	
Schedule:				Y	
Gheck Number:					
Check Amount: 📒 💌					
Return Item Fee: 🗧 💌					
Return Item Fee Description:					
Addenda Info:					
Enrollment Type:				×	
Updated Date From:		M To:		*	
Check/Trans Date From:		V To:		*	
Effective Date From:		V To:		~	
File Import Date From:		V To:		~	
Submit Date From:		To:		~	
Submit Count: =				(Laber	
Reference:					
SSN/ID:					
In House ID:	20				
Import ID (Private Data):					
Trans. Status:	ALL			~	
Find Transactions For:				(and a	

Enter at least one criterion to execute a successful search. The "%" wildcard can be used to assist.

TRANSACTION STATE

- Pending = Displays transactions which have not yet been processed
- Processed = Displays transactions Sent to Processor but not Sent to ACH
- ACH'd = Displays transactions which have been sent to ACH
- ALL = Displays the top 1,000 items that have not yet been processed and top 4,000 items which have been ACH'd or Processed

SELECT MERCHANT(S)

Those users who have access to multiple merchant accounts will see an additional menu to select the merchants you wish to include in your search. By default, all are selected. You can choose however to search by one or multiple. Simply click on one, then while holding down the <CTRL> key, click on others as desired and enter your search criteria.

TRANSACTION TYPE

Select a transaction type from the drop-menu

ROUTING TRANSIT

Enter all or part of an ABA Routing Transit number.

ACCOUNT NUMBER

Enter all or part of an account number.

CHECK TYPE

Select a Check type from the dropdown window.

CONSUMER / COMPANY NAME

Enter all or part of a Consumer / Company Name.

SCHEDULE

Select a Schedule from the drop-menu.

CHECK NUMBER

Enter all or part of a Check number.

CHECK AMOUNT

Enter all or part of the Check amount.

RETURN ITEM FEE

Enter all or part of the Return Item Fee.

RETURN FEE DESCRIPTION

Enter all or part of the Return Fee description.

ADDENDA INFORMATION

Enter all or part of the Addenda Information. Enrollment Type - Select an Enrollment Type from the dropdown window.

ENROLLMENT TYPE

Used for ENR transactions only

UPDATED DATE

This is the date a transaction was last modified. For example: The transaction may have originally been added on January 15th, however, it was not Sent to ACH until January 19th. Searching by this field will return only transactions that were updated during the range you specify.

CHECK / TRANS DATE

Type the 'From' and 'To' Check Date or select the dates from the calendar. **Eff. Date** – Type the 'From' and 'To' Effective Date or select the dates from the calendar.

FILE IMPORT DATE

Type the 'From' and 'To' File Import Date or select the dates from the calendar. **Submit Date** – Type the 'From' and 'To' Submit Date or select the dates from the calendar. **Submit Count**– Select the =, <, > symbol from the drop-menu and type a 1,2,3 in the field. **Reference** - Enter all or part of the Reference information.

SSN/ID

Enter all or part of the SSN or ID.

IN HOUSE ID

Enter all or part of the In House ID.

IMPORT ID (PRIVATE DATA)

Enter all or part of the Import ID or Private Data.

TRANS STATUS

Select a Transaction Status from the dropdown window.

FIND TRANSACTIONS FOR

Select either:

- All Criteria radio button or
- At Least One Criteria radio button.

Click the Submit button to find your transactions. Once the search is submitted, the Results will be displayed in a grid.

For qualifying items, the user will have the ability to Edit, Delete, Clone and Sched (create a Payment Plan) for the transaction selected by clicking on the appropriate icon. In addition, you can void multiple transactions by selecting the check box and clicking the void button.

Please Note – Only those transactions that have a status of "New Transaction" can be edited, deleted, or voided.

To modify the search criteria and search again, click the '+' next to "Modify Search Criteria".

In addition, qualifying 'returned' items can be resubmitted. Select the desired transactions using the check boxes and click the 'Review Return' button. If there are items which have been selected that do not qualify for resubmission, you will receive an alert. If all items pass the qualifier, you will then be taken to the 'Review Selected Returns' screen where you can modify your selections and resubmit.

TRANSACTION LIMITS

This screen displays a user's real-time balance relative to credit & debit transactions for the specified effective date as well as their single/daily transaction limits. The fields on this screen are not editable and can only be modified by an Admin User or Merchant Processor.

Tran Type	Ŧ	Single Trans Limit	Daily Trans Limit	Eff Date	Daily Amount Used	Daily Amount Remaining	Exclude Pay Plans	
)ebit		\$10,000.00	\$1,000,000.00	1/5/2010	\$0.00	\$1,000,000.00		
Credit		\$10,000.00	\$1,000,000.00	1/5/2010	\$0.00	\$1,000,000.00	Y	
				1/0/2010	30.00	\$1,000,000.00	1	
				1/0/2010	30.00	\$1,000,000.00		

DO NOT ACH LIST

(Available to Admin Users and Merchant Processors Only)

This screen displays all items on the Do Not ACH List. Admin users can view Revoke Returns and PreNotes, however, they cannot edit or delete them. They can however add new ABA/Account numbers to this list and can remove those items which they have manually entered. Merchant Processors can delete Revoke Returns but not PreNotes.

					st				
							ACHNow		
p by th	at column								
▲ 🔳	Bank ABA		Bank Account No		Return Code 📑	Edit	Delete	Clone	
9		Ţ		V	2				
12	3456780		87899977979797897				11	1	
22	2222226		88885555	F	207		×		
22	2222226		99997777	F	810		×	R	
22	2222226		123456	F	R02		×		
22	2222226		1234567	F	R10		×		
22	2222226		12345678	F	R07		×	R)	
									12
Next	Last		Total Re	econ	ds: 6		Records per pag	e: 25	Y
	Admin Setting	s R	eset Grid 🗸		Collapse All Expand All	1	-	Excel Expo	rt 🗸
	▼ 12 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22	V 123456780 222222226 22222226 222222226 22222226 222222226 222222226 222222226 222222226 Next Last	Bank ABA V 123456780 222222226 22222226 222222226 222222226 222222226 222222226 222222226 222222226 222222226 222222226 222222226 222222226 222222226 222222226 222222226	Bank ABA Bank Account No Image: Constraint of the second se	Bank ABA Bank ACcount No V V 123456780 878999777979797897 222222226 88885555 222222226 99997777 222222226 123456 222222226 123456 222222226 123456 222222226 123456 222222226 1234567 222222226 12345678	Bank ABA Bank Account No Return Code V V V V 123456780 87899977979797897 V V 222222226 88885555 R07 V 222222226 123456 R02 V 222222226 123456 R02 V 22222226 1234567 R10 V 22222226 1234567 R10 V 22222226 12345678 R07 V Next Last Total Records: 6	Bank ABA Bank Account No Return Code Edit V V V V V V 123456780 8789997797979797897 V V V V 222222226 88885555 R07 Image: State Sta	Bank ABA Bank Account No Return Code Edit Delete V	Bank ABA Bank Account No Return Code Edit Delete Clone V <t< td=""></t<>

In addition, items can be manual added to the list. You can select between User Entered and Revoke Returns. Simply enter the ABA, Account Number, and Return Code (when applicable) and click Add.

PRE-TRANSMISSION REPORT

The Pre Transmission Report displays transactions which are ready to be sent to your processor.

Select the desired report format and click the Print Report button. You will be presented with the File Download confirmation window. Select Open to view the report or select Save to save the report to a local directory on your workstation.

u're logged count ID: 10		102.00	0000					PI	re	-Trans	mi	ssio	n	Rep	ort	÷			Other	Applicatio	ons
ompanyl (10	07)			~															ACHNow		
Drag a colur	nn h	eader	here	e to group by that o	olum	1															
Tran ID	-	SEC Code		Consumer Name		IHID		Bank ABA		Bank Acct		Check Date		Check Type		Debit 🖂	Credit		Ref 🖻	Status (2
	Ŷ		Ŷ		9		9		Ŷ		8		9		8	9		Ţ	8	5	2
1223	212	PPD	1000	Test Transaction 1				*****	2	*****545	5	11/4/2	009	Consun	n	(\$1.00)	\$ 0 .	00		New Tr.	
1223	713	TEL		Test Transaction 2		-		*****		*****666	6	11/4/2	009	Consun	n	(\$2.00)	\$0.	00		New Tr.	
						PDF	Form	at													
<u>s</u>						Exce	For	nat				12.6									>)[]
Count = 2						Exce	Opt	ional Form	nat							(\$3.00)	\$0.	00.			
	-	-	_			CSVI	No He	eaders Fo	orma	it				tan - 1		2					-
First Pr	av	Page	1	of 1 Next	Last	CSVI	No He	eaders O	ption	hal Format			s:	2				Re	ecords per page:	25	~
Show Custon	nizatio	on Wirse	dow		A	dm CSV	With	Headers	Forn	nat				Collapse	All	Expand All			Ex	cel Expor	t
				1	-	CSV	With	Headers	Opti	ional Format		6	1	De la compañía de la		. In the second s			-		nother
						PDF	Form	at		17	Deliver D	Report	1	0	ncel						

PROCESSING

The Processing Menu contains the following sub-menu selections:

- Create ENR ACH File,
- Ready to Process,
- Trans Reversal,
- Offsetting Batch, and
- Sent to Processor

READY TO PROCESS

This screen displays transactions that have been entered into ACHNow[™] via File Import and/or the Add Transaction screen that have not yet been 'Sent to Processor'. A detailed view of any transaction can be obtained by clicking on the Edit icon. In addition, those with the necessary permissions can select the Delete, Clone, or Schedule Icons where applicable.

	logged in as t ID: 1007	: employee	_u	- I						Rea	dy t	o Pr	00	ess						1	Oth	er Ap	olicatio	ns
Compa	ny1 (1007)	(~							Rec	ay c									AC	CHNow			
>>					0	Click tl	ne 'Pro	cess'	but	ton belo	w to pro	cess a	ll t	ransaction	is selec	ted	28.							
Drag	a column h	eader here	to grou	p by t	hat o	column																		
	Tran ID	Account l	Check No	< 🖻 Re	ef 🖃	Name I	I IHID (т Тур	e 🖃	Debit 🖃	Credit 🖻	Action		Check - E Date	Eff Date	e 🗷	sc 🗉	Adder By	d 💌	Edit	Delete	Clone	Sche	đ
	÷	2 5	2	8	8	5	?	7	7	9	8		9	9		Ţ	8		Ŷ					
	1223713	*****				Test	•	TEL		(\$2.00)	\$0.00	Debit		11/4/2009	11/4/2	2009	1	. emplo	w		- 🗙	D		-
	1223714	******				Test	an ^P	PPD)	(\$1.00)	\$0.00	Debit		11/4/2009	11/4/2	2009	1	emplo	w		×	6	1	
<											litz												13	
ST TO T	Count = 2									(\$3.00) 2	\$0.00													
Firs	t Prev I	Page 1	of 1	Next		Last					1	otal Reci	ords	s: 2						Recor	ds per pa	ige: 2	5	$\mathbf{\mathbf{x}}$
Sho	w Customizatio	on Window				Adm	in Setting	s [Rese	t Grid 🗸				Collapse Al	l Expa	and A	All					Excel	Expor	tv
										Process	6]	Void]											
								1	Num	iber of T	ransact	ions Se	ele	cted: 1										

EDIT

If Edit is selected you will be brought to the Edit Transaction screen. Modify information as desired and click the Update button when finished. Upon updating the information you will be returned to the grid.

DELETE

If Delete is selected you will be brought to the Delete Transaction screen. Select the check box to confirm the Deletion and click the Delete button.

CLONE

If Clone is selected you will be brought to the Add Transaction screen. Only the information contained in the following fields may be changed: Check Amount, Check Number, Check Date, Reference, Consumers Name, SSN and In – House ID. Make the desired changes and select the Add button to create another transaction.

SCHED

If Sched is selected you will be brought to the Add Recurring Transaction screen. Use this screen to enter Recurring Transactions. Please note that Recurring Transactions will be generated one business day early if they fall on holidays or weekends.

As detailed in **Step 3**, the Ready to Process grid contains the transactions that are ready to be sent to your processor. This grid also displays the total number of transactions, (all debit & credit totals) that can be batched and sent to the processor. The transactions that can be processed have a green check in the check box located on the left side of the view. You can deselect a transaction by clicking on this check box. You may deselect all the transactions selected by clicking on the check box in the header row. Deselected transaction(s) will not be included in the batch process.

TRANS REVERSAL

(If you do not have access to this menu item and feel you should, please contact your Merchant Processor.)

Trans Reversal allows you to create a new transaction which is the exact opposite of the original transaction. i.e. Reversing a \$5.00 Debit would create a new \$5.00 credit transaction. All information contained in the original transaction (ABA/AcctNo, Name, Reference, InHouse ID, etc) are used in the new transaction.

Reversals must meet the following criteria:

- SettleDate is not more than 5 business days ago,
- The Status is Sent To ACH,
- The RecordType is Detailed, and
- The transaction is not an Offset.
- In addition, users can only reverse transactions they have entered (with the exception of Site Users).

PROCESSING A REVERSAL

If you wish to reverse a single transaction, begin by searching by the original Tran ID. (The Tran ID can easily be found by looking in the Sent To ACH grid from Transaction Overview on the Home Page).

u're logged in as: count ID: 1007	enipreyee_e	1		Batch	and Tra	ans R	leve	ersal					Other Appli	ations
mpany1 (1007)	×						101101					ACHN	ow	
• Reversal Crit	eria													
	Total Debits	Count: 1		Amount: \$15.0	0		Т	otal Crec	its	Count: 0			mount: \$0.0	0
Tran ID Batch ID	Reference	C	onsumer Nam	ne In House ID) Status	RC Sec	Code	Amount	Check No	Bank A	ABA I	Bank Ac	t Check Da	ite
1223591 2795	gym membership :	2 of 13 m	ary white		Sent to ACH	PPD	Debit	\$15.00		123456	780 *	****34	55 11/02/20	09 11/2
6				10									7	(3
<]	Total Transac	tions		un;	Cour	ıt: 1					Amo	ount: \$15	00	>

Clicking Reverse will immediately create the new transaction in the Ready To Process queue. If you created the reversal in error, do not complete the confirmation in the next step. Simply navigate to the Ready To Process queue and delete the transaction. If you do wish to continue with the reversal you have two options.

Logout

Legal

Home

.

ou're logg ccount ID		mployee_u	1		Batch	and Tra	ans Rev	ersal			0	ther Applicati	ons
ompany1	(1007)	×			Barcon	und m	ino nor	orour			ACHNow		
EReve	ersal Crite	eria									61		
		Total Debits	Count	11	Amount: \$15.0	0	т	otal Cred	lits	Count: 0	Ап	iount: \$0.00	
Tran ID	Batch ID	Reference		Consumer Nam	e In House ID	Status	RC Sec Code	Amount	Check N	No Bank ABA	Bank Acct	Check Date	
1223591	2795	gym membership :	2 of 13	mary white		Sent to ACH	PPD Debit	\$15.00		123456780	*****3455	11/02/2009	11/2/
<]]		>

The batch (transaction(s) have been created as a Reversal Batch. You can Send this Batch to your processor from this screen or from the Ready to Process screen. If you agree with the information provided on this page, enter your password and click on the "Submit" button. This will take a few minutes, please wait for the confirmation page to appear. If you do not agree with the information on this page and want to cancel this process, click on the "Cancel" button to delete the newly created transactions.

Once this action is executed the status for the effected transactions will change to "Sent to Processor" and you will not be able to make changes to the transactions at that point. Checking the Pre-Transmission Report thoroughly prior to this step is highly recommended.

Confirm Password:	
Process	Cancel

You can leave the confirmation screen without entering your password. Doing so will leave the new transaction in the Ready To Process queue for later processing. Or, you can enter your password which will send the item directly to processor.

Upon entering your password and hitting Enter you will receive a success message and be returned to the initial Trans Reversal screen where you can view the Transmittal Register.

The same steps apply for Trans Reversal by Batch ID. In this case however, new opposing transactions will be created for each transaction in the batch.

© Regal Technologies, LLC – All Rights Reserved

OFFSETTING BATCH

(If you do not have access to this menu item and feel you should, please contact your Merchant Processor.)

Offsetting Batches are used to create an offset per batch. Begin by searching for a Batch ID. You can easily find the Batch ID by running the Batch Summaries Report from the Reports menu. Offsetting Batches must meet the following criteria: SettleDate is not more than 5 business days ago, the Status is Sent To ACH or Sent to Processor, the RecordType is Detailed, and the transaction is not an Offset. In addition, users can only reverse transactions they have entered (with the exception of Site Users).

Additionally, you can modify the SEC Code to one of your choosing (based on your SEC Code permissions). The following SEC Codes qualify:

- CCD Credit/Debit
- PPD Credit/Debit
- GL Credit/Debit
- PPD Loan Credit
- CCD Loan Credit/Debit

The User Account menu determines what ABA/AcctNo will be used in the new transactions. If you select Receiver, the same ABA/AcctNo used in the original transactions will be used. If you select Originator, the ABA/AcctNo of the Merchant account will be used.

Once you have made your selections, clicking "Reverse" will create new offset transaction(s) from the transaction(s) listed above with the exact opposite dollar value and place them in Ready To Process. You will be presented with a final confirmation screen that displays the transactions as they will be submitted. Failure to complete the reversal by clicking "Process" in the following step will require you to manually send the transaction(s) to processor from the Ready to Process Screen.

• Offse	etting Ba	atch Crite	ria											
		Total Deb	its	Count: 1		Amount: \$4.00			Т	otal Credi	ts Co	unt: 0	Amou	nt:\$0.00
Tran ID	Batch ID	Reference	Consu	mer Name	In House ID	Status	RC	Sec Code	Amount	Check No	Bank ABA	Bank Acct	Check Date	SettleDate Tr
1500500	17830		test			Sent to Processor	•	PPD Debit	\$4.00	18	******	*****4654	02/10/2011	D
<						10) (>
		Total T	ransa	ctions				Count: 1				Amou	nt: \$4.00	
	S	elect Sec (Code:	Current S	ec Codes	*		1	Use Ac	count 0	riginator		~	

Clicking "Reverse" will create new offset transaction(s) from the transaction(s) listed above with the exact opposite dollar value and place them in Ready To Process. Failure to complete the reversal by clicking "Process" in the following step will require you to manually send the transaction (s) to process from the Ready to Process Screen.

Reverse	Cancel
---------	--------

CREATE ENR ACH FILE

(If you do not have access to this menu item and feel you should, please contact your Merchant Processor.)

This grid displays only ENR transactions that can be batched to create an ENR ACH File.

	gged in as: e ID: 1007	mpioyee_u	1					Creat	te		10	H File					Oth	her App	olication
Compan	y1 (1007)	~														A	CHNow		
>																			
Drag a	column head	ier here to g	roup by th	at column															
	Tran ID	Account 🖃	Name	💌 Туре		Amount		Action		Eff Date		Added By		Added Time		Edit	Delete	Clone	Sched
	T	\$		8	7	-	9		Ŷ		Ŷ		8		9				
	1223716	*****9	Maggie Mo	00 ENR		\$0	.00	Credit		N	IA	employee_		11/4/2009 1:25:03 PM			×	1	
	1223717	*****9	Jorge Noo	ner ENR		\$0	.00	Credit		N	IA	employee_	1	11/4/2009 1:26:31 PM			×	B	
																			1
C	ount = 2					\$0	.00												7
First	Prev Pag	e 1 c	f1 Next	Last						Total Re	cor	ds: 2				Reco	ds per pa	sge: 2	5
Show	Customization V	Vindow		Adm	in Sett	ings Re	eset	Grid 🖂				Collapse	All	Expand All				Excel	Export

Click the check box to select the transactions that you wish to batch to create an ACH File. (*Users who do not have the permission to modify transactions, can click on the TranID to view the transaction details.*) A snapshot of the grid can be made by clicking on the Export button. Click the Create ACH File button to process the transaction(s). You will be brought to another grid displaying only the transactions selected for processing.

	ogged in as: ID: 1007	employee_u				Create	ENR A	'H File		1	Oth	ier App	lications
Compar	ny1 (1007)	~				ercuto				A	CHNow		
*	Discret	tionary Da	ta: DD1				* File N	ame: 091	104012642employee_use	r	.ach		
	Tran ID	Account	Name	Туре	Amount	Action	Eff Date	Added By	Added Time	Edit	Delete	Clone	Sched
		e ******9	Maggie Moo	ENR	\$0.00) Credit:	NA	employee	. 11/4/2009 1:25:03 PM		×	6	
	122371	7 *****9	Jorge Noone	r ENR	\$0.00) Credit	NA	employee	. 11/4/2009 1:26:31 PM		×	P	
	Count = 2				\$0.0	0							<u>8</u> .
<u> </u>	Count = 2				\$0.0	0							3
Show	/ Customization	Window		Admin Settin	gs Rese	t Grid 🗸		Collapse .	All Expand All			Excel	Export V
						v (Confirm						
						Create ACH Fi	le Car	icel					
							du)	File for Transa	ana tara				
							Create ACF	rile for transe	Ictions Listed				
					Nun	nber of Trar	nsactions Se	lected: 2					

The confirmation screen displays the selected transaction(s), the Discretionary Data, and the File Name for the ACH File. The Discretionary Data and File Name will have default values, but they can be modified by the user. The file name will have a default value of the user login name appended to the current date/time.

Select the check box to Confirm creation of the ACH File and Click the Create ACH File button.

You will be brought to the File List screen and receive a confirmation message: "Transaction(s) Successfully Added to ACH File."

© Regal Technologies, LLC – All Rights Reserved

The files displayed in the grid can be downloaded to your local workstation.

count ID: 1007		File List	Other A	Applications
ompany1 (1007)			ACHNow	
Drag a column header here to group by that	solumn			
Batch		File Date	▼ ₹] [)ownload
091104012947employee_user.ach			11/4/2009	
091103091511employee_user.ach			11/3/2009	
090204010608employee_user.ach			2/4/2009	
<	-			2.(
First Prev Page 1 of 1 Next	Last	Total Records: 3	Records per page:	25 🖂
Show Customization Window	Admin Settings Reset Grid 🗸	Collapse Al Expand Al	Exc	el Export

Click on the Download Icon to download the file.

Select Open to view the ACH File or select Save to save the file to your local hard drive.

Once the file is downloaded it is moved to an archived status. A list of the archived files can be viewed from the Archived Files screen.

SENT TO PROCESSOR

This screen displays transactions that have been processed. The information displayed is the debit and credit counts and totals. The grid also displays the Total Transaction count and amount values.

mpany1 (1	007	()	~				Jen				ocess	30					100	HNov			_
mpanyi (i	.007	,															MC	HIVOV	ni -		
Drag a colu	nın	header here	to gr	oup by t	nat	column															
Tran ID		Account	3	Ref		Batch ID 🖃	Name		Туре		Debit		Credit 🖸	Check Date	+ 💌	Eff Date	E S	c 🖻	Added By		lone
	7		•		9	♥		(*) V		9		8	•		7		9	9		9	
	13	******6666				2810	Test Transaction 2		TEL		(\$2.	00)	\$0.00	11/4	/2009	11/4/20			employ		
12237	14	*****7778	OFF	SET I281	0	2810	Company1		CCD		\$0	.00	\$2.00	11/4	2009	11/4/20	09	1	employ		
12236	886	*****5454	24 0	of O		2804	Weekly Tues Ongoing2		CCD -		(\$4.	00)	\$0.00	11/3	/2009	11/3/20	09	1	employ		
12236	91	*****7778	OFF	SET I280	4	2804	Company1		CCD		\$0	.00	\$4.00	11/2	2009	11/2/20	09	1	employ		
											140	001	+0.00								1.21
ount = 4											(\$0	.00) 2	\$6.00 2								
First P	rev	Page 1	of	1 Next		Last				Total	Records:	4				8	ecord	s ner	page:	25	5

Within this grid you have the ability to Clone eligible transactions. After you have selected the Clone icon you will be directed to the Add Transaction screen. Only the information contained in the following fields may be changed:

- Check Amount,
- Check Number,
- Check Date,
- Reference,
- Consumers Name,
- SSN and In House ID.

Make the necessary changes and select the Add button to create another transaction.

FILES

The Files menu contains six sub-menu selections: File List, Archived Files, File Formats, Add File Format, Import a File, and Import Errors.

FILE LIST

The File List screen displays the transaction(s) that were successfully added to ACH File for Stand-Alone users. The information displayed is:

- The Batch File name,
- The File Date, and
- Icons to Download or Backout a file.

ou're logged in as: employee_u ccount ID: 1007	File List		Other	Applications
Company1 (1007)	The List	A	CHNow	
2				
Drag a column header here to group by that column				
Batch	File Date	- 0	Download	Backout
091104012947employee_user.ach		11/4/2009		× ×
091103091511employee_user.ach		11/3/2009		×
090204010608employee_user.ach		2/4/2009	.	×
				2
First Prev Page 1 of 1 Next Last	Total Records: 3	Reco	rds per page:	25 🗸
Show Customization Window Admin Setting:	IS Reset Grid V Collapse All Ex	kpand All	Ex	cel Export v

- 1. Click on the Download Icon to download the file.
- 2. Select Open to view the ACH File or select Save to save the file to your local hard drive
- 3. Once the file is downloaded it is moved to an Archived status. A list of the archived files can be viewed from the Archived Files screen.

ARCHIVED FILES

'ou're logged in as: employee_u Account ID: 1007		Archived Files	Other	Applicati	ions
Company1 (1007)	17	Archived Thes	ACHNow		_
>			-//		
Drag a column header here to group l	by that column				-
В	atch	File Date	* -	Downloa	d
1809.ach			7/30/2009		^
7760.ach			7/29/2009		=
090729013924employee_user.ach			7/29/2009		- 10
8100.ach			5/11/2009		
090511063913employee_user.ach			5/11/2009		
6481.ach			1/26/2009		
090126092220employee_user.ach			1/26/2009		~
8				-	2
First Prev Page 1 of 2 M	Vext Last	Total Records: 33	Records per page:	25	~
Show Customization Window	Admin Settings R	Reset Grid \vee Collapse All Expand All	Ex	kcel Expor	rt 🗸

The Archived Files screen displays a list of Batches that have been processed.

- 1. Click on the Download Icon to download the file.
- 2. Select Open to view the ACH File or select Save to save the file to your local hard drive

FILE FORMATS

The File Format screen lists the selections of Arc Scanner Format, Extended, Reference, Standard, Standard Ready to Process, Standard ACH, and Standard ACH Ready to Process by default. File formats you have added via the 'Add File Format' screen will also be displayed. Those formats labeled 'Ready to Process' will send the transactions to Ready to Process instead of sending them directly to your Processor.

	ormats			-	r Applicati	ons
redit Hold (1030)				ACHNow		
Drag a column header here to group by that column	W1					
Format Name	Format Type	Contains Header	Edit	Delete	List	
	?		Ÿ			
ARC Scanner Format	CSV/XLS	N		×	1	
Extended	CSV/XLS	N	8	×	B	
Reference Format	CSV/XLS	N		×	P	
Standard	CSV/XLS	N		×	P	
Standard - Ready to Process	CSV/XLS	N	0.0	×	P)	
Standard ACH	ACH	N	01.2	×	B	
Standard ACH - Ready to Process	ACH	N	1	×	Ð	
S.					1	2
First Prev Page 1 of 1 Next Last	Total Records: 7		8	lécords per page	25	-
Show Customization Window Admin Settings Reset Grid 🗸	Collapse	All Expand Al		F	xcel Expo	rt

Although you cannot edit, delete, or clone the 7 default file format selections, you can perform these actions for any file formats you have added. From this screen you can also easily identify which file formats contain a header.

EDIT FILE FORMAT

	In the grid below, place the number of the field in your file.	in which the item a	ppears	
	Field	Position		
	User Login	0	^	
	**Sec Code	9		
	Transaction Type	0		
	* Account Name (First Last)	1		
	Last Name	0		
	* Bank ABA	2		
	* Bank Account No	3		
	* Amount	4		
	Service Fee Amount	5		
	**Account Type	6		
	Check No	7	~	
Stat	No Decimals Amounts Contain Decima Decimal Points (eg. 1376 If Status not specified or has no value, set the default value to:	8 to be read as 137		Process
Accou	Int Default Setting: If Acct Type has no value, set the default value to:			~
Pag (20	de Default Setting: If Sec Code has no value, set the default value to:			~
Sec cu	Replacement Logic: Allows the replacement of th	e Account Type and lues specified	l/or Sec Co	de with

Select the Edit icon, make modifications as desired, and click Update.

CLONE FILE FORMAT

Select the Clone icon, make modifications as desired (making sure to modify the Format Name as well) and click Update.

DELETE FILE FORMAT

Select the Delete icon, click the Confirm Delete check-box and click the Delete button.

ADD FILE FORMAT

To add a new file format, you will need to provide the Format Name, select the appropriate radio button for the Format Type, and indicate the format parameters.

When creating a CSV/XLS Format Type, simply double-click in each desired Position Field and type the corresponding number for the column you would like the data to appear in. Example: Using '1' for SEC Code will place that data in the first column. Make sure to complete all required fields (those marked with a red asterisk '*') at a minimum. Make sure to click the check-box if the file will contain a header.

By default, the Status will be set to 'Determine By Check Date'. However, you can choose to have imported items sent to Ready To Process or directly to Processor.

DETERMINE BY CHECK DATE

This option is the default and does not force Status to have any particular value. The following rules apply to files imported without a Status field mapping or a default specified:

Check Date	Туре	Destination
tomorrow	debit	Future Payments
today	debit	Sent to Processor
tomorrow	credit	Future Payments
today	credit	Sent to Processor

ARC and RCK types will always be sent to processor regardless of check date

SEND TO READY TO PROCESS

This option forces all transactions to be placed in the Ready to Process queue regardless of check date. This is true when a Status field is not mapped and when a Status filed is mapped but no value is specified.

SEND DIRECTLY TO PROCESSOR

This option forces all transactions to be Sent to Processor regardless of check date. This is true when a Status field is not mapped and when a Status filed is mapped but no value is specified.

ACCOUNT DEFAULT SETTING

You can select Personal Checking, Personal Savings, or Business Checking in the event the 'Acct Type' field is blank in the imported file. As well, you can select a default SEC Code in the event this field is blank in the imported file.

REPLACEMENT LOGIC

You can utilize 'replacement logic'. This allows you to automatically replace specific field values in a file with those you indicate. For example: If in your file you have WEB transactions and you indicate to replace with Tel/Checking, those transactions will be automatically changed to TEL on import. When satisfied, click Add. You will now see the new file format on the File Formats screen.

	me: Fixed Form		ent Logic			_	
* Format T	ype: Ocsv/xLs(Fixed Length					
	In the grid be	slow, place the n	number of the field	in which the it	em appea	à#5	
		mintal	in your file.			-	
	User Logi	Field	Start P	os. Ler	igth	~	
	**Sec Code	48	55				
	Transactio		70		800 <u>(19</u>	11 11	
		lame (First Last			9		
	Last Nam		0	1			
	 Bank ABA 		20				
	+ Bank Acc		35		0	8	
	* Amount		45		111		
	Service F	ee Amount	0	1)		
	**Account T	уре	65	4	8. T		
	Check No		0)	*	
	🗖 Eile Ce	ntains Head	0.8				
		interns incou					
				00		By Check D	<u> </u>
						by check D	ave
Status D	efault Setting		ecified or has no			andu To Dio	
Status D	efault Setting:		ecified or has no efault value to:	Ose	nd To Re	eady To Pro	
		value, set the d	efault value to:	©se ⊙se	nd To Re nd Direct	ly To Proce	ssor
	efault Potting	value, set the d If Acct Type ha default value to	efault value to: s no value, set the n	©se ⊙se	nd To Re	ly To Proce	
Account D	efault Setting:	value, set the d If Acct Type ha default value to	efault value to: s no value, set the no value, set the	©se ⊙se	ind To Re ind Direct sumer S	ly To Proce	ssor
Account D Sec Code D	efault Setting: efault Setting:	value, set the d If Acct Type ha default value to If Sec Code has default value to	efault value, set the s no value, set the no value, set the s replacement of th	O Se O Se Con: WEE e Account Typ	ind To Re ind Direct sumer S	ly To Proce: avings	ssor V
Account D Sec Code D	efault Setting:	value, set the d If Acct Type has default value to If Sec Code has default value to	efault value, set the ti no value, set the ti replacement of th the va	O Se O Se Con: WEE	ind To Re ind Direct sumer S s e and/or	ly To Proce: avings	ssor V
Account D Sec Code D	efault Setting: efault Setting:	value, set the d If Acct Type ha default value to If Sec Code has default value to Allows the	efault value, set the ti no value, set the ti replacement of th the va	O Se O Se Con: WEE e Account Typ lues specified	nd To Re nd Dired sumer S } e and/or R	lly To Proces avings Sec Code w	ith
Account D Sec Code D	efault Setting: efault Setting:	value, set the d If Acct Type ha default value to If Sec Code has default value to Allows the If Acct Type is	efault value, set the tr no value, set the treplacement of th the va	Se Se Con: WEE e Account Typ lues specified If Sec Code Is	ind To Re ind Direct sumer S a e and/or R T Tel	ily To Proce: avings · Sec Code w eplace With	ith
Account D Sec Code D	efault Setting: efault Setting:	value, set the d If Acct Type ha default value to If Sec Code has default value to Allows the If Acct Type is	efault value, set the in value, set the it replacement of the the value Replace With B Business	Se Se Con: WEE e Account Typ lues specified If Sec Code Is	ind To Re ind Direct sumer S e and/or R T Tel W Wi	ly To Proces avings Sec Code w eplace With I/Checking	v v ith
Account D Sec Code D	efault Setting: efault Setting:	value, set the d If Acct Type ha default value to If Sec Code has default value to Allows the If Acct Type is	efault value, set the s no value, set the no value, set the replacement of the the va Replace With B Business C Checking	Se Se Con: WEE e Account Typ lues specified If Sec Code Is	e and/or Reand/or R TTel WWi A AR	lly To Proces avings Sec Code w eplace With I/Checking eb/Checking	v ith g
Account D Sec Code D	efault Setting: efault Setting:	value, set the d If Acct Type ha default value to If Sec Code has default value to Allows the If Acct Type is	efault value, set the in ovalue, set the in ovalue, set the in replacement of the the value Replace With B Business C Checking S Savings	© Se © Se Con: WEE lues specified If Sec Code Is WEB	e and/or Reand/or R TTel WWi A AR	ly To Proces avings Sec Code w eplace With //Checking eb/Checking C/Checking	v ith g
Account D Sec Code D	efault Setting: efault Setting:	value, set the d If Acct Type ha default value to If Sec Code has default value to Allows the If Acct Type is	efault value, set the s no value, set the mo value, set the replacement of the the va Replace With B Business C Checking S Savings	Se Se Con: WEE e Account Typ lues specified If Sec Code Is	and To Re sumer S e and/or T Tel W Wi A AR R RCI	ly To Proces avings Sec Code w eplace With //Checking eb/Checking C/Checking	v ith g

CREATING A FIXED LENGTH FILE

When creating a Fixed Length Format Type, you will need to indicate both the Starting Position and Length. Example: Let's say you want the Bank ABA to be the first column. You would type a '1'in the Start Pos. field and since ABA's are always 9 characters, the length would be 9. In order for the fields not to run together, add a few character spaces for the next Start Pos. Our next field is going to be Bank Account No, so our Start Pos. will be 14 with and the Length 17, and so on. File formats added or edited by the Merchant Processor, will also be available to their Merchant Users.

IMPORT A FILE

The Import a File process currently contains default formats, Arc Scanner Format, Extended, Reference, Standard, Standard Ready to Process, Standard ACH, and Standard ACH Ready to Process, as well as any you have manually added. *Note – Only transactions which have been processed are be eligible when the Reference Format is selected

Your Logo					Your S	Slogan	Here
You're logged in as: employee_user Account ID: 1007 Company1		Impo	t File		Otl ACH	ner Applicatio	ons 🗸
Home Transactions Processing Files	* File Format: Sten • File:		Upload Indicates Required Field	Browse	Diplay	File Format Spe	ecs
Files (*) File List Archived Files File Formats Add File Format Import a File Import Errors Payment Plans (*) Merchants (*) Security (*) Reports (*)		Home	Logout	Legal			

FILE FORMAT

Select the desired file format from the drop-menu. (Note: After selecting one of the default formats, you will see a '?'. Clicking this button will provide a help screen for the format you have selected.)

IMPORT FILE

Use the Browse button to select the file to Upload.

- 1. Click the Upload button to perform the file upload. You will receive the message at the page footer indicating the number of items which were successful/unsuccessful.
- 2. Once the file is successfully processed you will receive a buttons to generate the Transmittal Register and Transactions By Batch Reports. Click the button to generate this report.
- 3. In the event the file contains errors, you will receive the following message "File was processed, but some data errors were encountered". To review those errors, navigate to the "Import Errors" screen.

Your Logo		Your Slogan Here
You're logged in as: employee_use Account ID: 1007 Company1	Import File	Other Applications
Home 🛞 Transactions 😵 Transactions 😵	* File Format: * File: Upload * Indicates Required Fiel	Browse
Files	File was processed, but some data errors v	were encountered.
Archived Files File Formats Add File Format Import a File Import Errors Payment Plans Merchants Security Security Reports Security	Home Logout	Legal

IMPORT ERRORS

The Import Errors screen gives you a detailed snapshot of the file in which the error was encountered, the error type, etc.

mpa	any1 (10			2000					AII	11	mport F	ne	E	1101	5						1			_
	ault (10	07)		*							30										ACHNOW	6		_
Drag	g a colun	n head	ler I	here to group by	th	at column																		
	Sec E	Tran Type		Account Name (First Last)		Account (2	Amount 🖻	Check Date	E	Effective 🖃	Ref		Error Type		Error(s) 🖻	File Name	•	Line No.		Date of Error	• 🖃	Added By	
	8		Ÿ		Ŷ	5	3	Ŷ		Ŷ	8		Ŷ		\$?		9		9		Ţ		Ŷ
	CREDIT	c	1	Boop Betty	2	******3		5.00	07/07	/09	07/07/09	New	Li,	Import		Bank AB	Betty	1.00		1	10/20/20	09	employ	
	DEBIT	D		Debit Today		*****3		20.00	10/20/2	009	10/20/2009			Import		Bank AB	By Ch	e		1	10/20/20	09	employ	
	DEBIT	D		Debit Today		******3	922	20.00	10/20/20	009	10/20/2009			Import	£.,.	Bank AB	By Ch	e		1	10/20/20	09	employ	
Π	TEL	D		Rod Serling		*****3		20.00	07/07	/09	07/07/09			Import		Bank AB	63 1	0		1	8/5/2009	1	employ	
			10	Count = 24																				
Firs	st Pre	V Pag	e 1	of1 Ne	xt	Last					Total	Recon	ds: (24						R	ecords per	page:	25	
Sho	w Custom	ization \	Vind	ow		Adm	in S	Settings F	Reset Grid	~				Collapsi	e Al	Expand	Al					Ex	cel Exp	ort
Silo	TT COSTON		10					in the fi	(COCT ONG)				1	or chirdly so	6 en	the Appendix And							ear Levis	-

From this screen you can review the errors either on-screen or via export. After reviewing, you can make the necessary corrections to the file and reattempt your import or utilize the Edit icon to modify the transaction and submit. Transactions which are modified via the Edit icon will appear in the Ready to Process queue and must be manually Sent to Processor. If you do not wish to modify the failed transactions or have already made the necessary modifications and want the transaction messages removed from the File Import Errors screen, place a checkmark in the appropriate line item checkbox and select the Void button.

Note C21 & BOC transactions cannot be edited on this screen.

PAYMENT PLANS

The Pay Plans menu contains five sub-menu selections: Add Schedule, Schedule List, Add Payment Plan, Find Payment Plans, and Active Payment Plan List.

ADD SCHEDULE

Here you can add payment plan schedules. You can choose to create weekly, bi-weekly, monthly, or custom schedules. You can also require a prenote for all transactions which use your new schedule. Simply select the desired radio buttons and corresponding rows and click Add to complete. You will then see this schedule selection in the Schedule List, Add Payment Plan screen, and Add Transaction (for recurring transactions).

Add Schedule	Schedule List					
* Schedule Name	: Monthly on the Last Friday					
	Require Prenote for all Transactions that	use this schedule				
🔘 Weekly, 🔘 Bi-V	Veekly		🔘 Or Custo	m		
1. select the day	(s) on which Transactions will be create	d.	1. Enterth	e number of days be	stween each payment.	
Sunday		~				
Monday						
Tuesday						
Wednesday Thursday		20				
T Hore and y						
💿 Or Monthly						
1. Select the more	iths in which Transactions will be create	d.	2. Then sel	lect the days on whic	ch Transactions will be created.	
Every Month		~	💿 Fixed	27th		~
January				28th		
February				29th or last day o		
March				30th or last day o		
April				31st or last day o	fmonth	<u>×</u>
May June			O Flexible	First	Sunday	
July			U Flexible	Second	Monday	
August				Third	Tuesday	
September				Fourth	Wednesday	
October		~			Thursday	~
		Ad	d			

SCHEDULE NAME

Enter a name for your Schedule.

REQUIRE PRENOTE CHECK BOX

Select this box if a Prenote is required for all transactions that use this schedule. Payment Plans which include a prenote are now required to have the Start Date at least 6 business days in the future as per NACHA rules. Upon adding a payment plan that requires a pre-note the user will be prompted that no transactions can be entered for that ABA/AcctNo combination for 6 business days, again, as per NACHA rules.

WEEKLY, BI-WEEKLY

For a weekly schedule you have the ability to choose between Weekly or BiWeekly.

SELECT THE DAY

For Weekly or Bi-Weekly schedules select the day on which the transaction will be created.

CUSTOM

For a Custom schedule enter in the number of days between each payment.

MONTHLY

For a Monthly schedule select the months in which the transactions will be created.

FIXED

For a fixed monthly schedule select the day on which the transaction will be created.

FLEXIBLE

- 1. For a flexible monthly schedule select the week and the day on which the transaction will be created.
- 2. Select the Add button to create this schedule.
- 3. Schedule List

The Schedule List screen displays all the schedules for a particular user. The list shows the Name and frequency of the schedule. It also contains shortcuts which will allow the user to Edit, Delete and or view the Payment Plan List.

count ID: 1007	1		Sched	lule List			1	Other Applica	100000
ompany1 (1007) 💉						ACHNow			
Drag a column header here to gro	up by th	at column							
Schedule Name		Frequency		Prenote		Edit	Delete	List	
	Ŷ		T		Ţ				
895099		Bi-Weekly		N	3		×		
Custom Schedule		Weekly		N			×		
Daily		Weekly		Y			×	#	
Daily Fridays 1061		Weekly					×		
Gym membership		Custom		N			×		
Monthly Flex Schedule		Monthly Flex		Y			×		
Monthly on 1st		Monthly Fixed		N			×		
									12
First Prev Page 1 of 1	Next	Last		Total Records: 10			Re	cords per page: 25	-
Show Customization Window		Admin Settings Reset Grid		Collor	pse All	Expand All		Excel Exp	ort

PRENOTES

A check will indicate that a Prenote will be created for all transactions that use this schedule.

EDIT

If Edit is selected you will be directed to the Edit Schedule screen. Modify information as desired and click the Update when satisfied. Upon updating the information you will be returned to the grid.

Note: If user sets the total payments to the number of payments already generated (Next Payment Number - 1) the Payment Plan will be set to Completed upon prompting user.

DELETE

If Delete is selected you will be directed to the Delete Schedule screen. Select the check box to confirm the Deletion and click the Delete button.

LIST

If List is selected you will be directed to the Payment Plan List.

ADD PAYMENT PLAN

The Add Payment Plan screen is used to create recurring transactions. Recurring Transactions are pre-generated by ACHNowTM every weekday based upon specific business logic which takes into account weekends and federal holidays. Debit transactions are pre-generated one business day in advance of the recurring transaction due date and Credit transactions are pre-generated two business days in advance of the recurring transaction due date.

Add Payment	Plan	Other Applications
		ACHNow
* Schedule:		
Number of Payments: Plan Total:	377666 539640 Custom Schedule Daily Daily Fridays 1061 Monthly Flex Schedule	
* First Payment Date:	Monthlý Schedule Weekly Schedule Weekly Tuesdays Custom WeeklyCustom Weekly	
	Custom Bi-Webkly Custom Day Span Custom Monthly Fixed	

The Add Payment Plan screen has additional fields of information specific to recurring payments that need to be completed. In addition to using existing Schedules you can create a Custom Schedule when adding a new payment plan. Simply select one of the Custom selections from the Schedule list. Doing so will surface additional required fields that are necessary based on your selection for the schedule type.

Address 2: -----Custom Monthly Flex-

TRANSACTION TYPE

Select the transaction types from the dropdown window. Please refer to Appendix A for a list of Transaction Type definitions.

ROUTING TRANSIT

Enter the ABA Bank Routing Transit No. (found on the bottom of a check)

ACCOUNT NUMBER

Enter the bank account number (found on the bottom of a check). A minimum of 3 digits are required for Checking Accounts and 2 for Savings Accounts.

SCHEDULE

Select an existing Schedule from the drop-menu or create a new Custom Schedule.

CHECK AMOUNT

Enter the amount of your Check

NUMBER OF PAYMENTS

Enter the number of recurring payments.

PLAN TOTAL

Enter the sum of the Check amount multiplied by the number of payments.



ONGOING AND ACTIVE

Ongoing

Place a check in the appropriate check box to select between Ongoing or Active.

- Ongoing plans have no end date.
- Active means the plan is still running and is active (this is checked by default)

ADDENDA INFORMATION

Certain transactions require remittance information in a specific format.

FIRST PAYMENT DATE

Enter the date of the first payment. Note: If you are adding a payment plan that includes a pre-note you will be prompted that no transactions can be entered for that ABA/AcctNo combination for 6 business days as per NACHA rules. Entering a start date I the past is not permitted.

REFERENCE

Free form text field.

COMPANY NAME

Enter the Company Name

Address 1:				Address Matching - When
Address 2:				adding a new transaction, the
City:				address matching function will
State:	💉 Zip:	Phone:	8	attempt to find a match on either one of the following
Email:				field values; ABA number,
SSN:				Account Number and or Consumer Name. If a Match
				is found, the saved address

PHONE

Company phone number

EMAIL

Enter company email address if you want to send notification email.

ID

Enter the Tax ID.

IN-HOUSE ID

Enter in the In – House ID.

EMAIL NOTIFICATION

You also have the ability to send an email notification to the consumer that alerts them that a payment will be deducted from their account. Currently, the email only generates for the first payment. However, in an upcoming release it will notify them each time a payment is generated.

Recurring Payment Notification from Company1

Sent:	Mon 7/20/2009 12:17 PM
To:	
Pleas	e Note: A payment plan from Company1 for: \$1.00, was authorized to be debited from

your account beginning on or about: 7/21/2009.

Complete all required fields as indicated by the red asterisk '*'. Upon clicking Add, your new payment plan will be saved and visible/editable from the Active Pay Plan List.

FIND PAYMENT PLANS (SEARCH)

As with Find Transactions, enter at least one criterion to execute a successful search. The "%" wildcard can be used. Active Payment Plan List

u're logged in : count ID: 1007		1		Y		Active Payment Plan List													Other /	Applica	ation				
mpany1 (1007	7)		Y										1.11									ACHI	iow		
Drag a column	header	her	e to group	by	that	colu	imn																		
Pay Plan ID	Sched Name		Account	•	Ref		Name	•	IHID	Z	Туре		Debit	-	Credit	Ac	ction		Plan Type 💌	Next Rel Date	-	Next Pmt Date	Tot Pmts	Ne Pmt	
V		Ŷ		Ŷ		T		Ŷ		Ŷ		Ŷ	1	Ŷ	5	De	ebit	Ŷ	7		8	2		0	
562	Monthly	(11)	*****78	38			test				PPÐ		(\$1.	60)	\$0.00	De	bit		Monthl	2/4	/2010	2/5/2010	1	5	
512	Monthly		******30	02			test			1	PPD		(\$1.	00)	\$0.00	De	bit		Monthl	2/4	/2010	2/5/2010		5	
511	Monthly	-	*****19	46			test			1	PPD		(\$1.	00)	\$0.00	De	bit	1	Monthl	2/4	/2010	2/5/2010	1	5	
509	Monthly		*****77	14			test			1	PPD		(\$1.	00)	\$0.00	De	bit	1	Monthl	2/4	/2010	2/5/2010	4	5	
575	Daily		******34	56			webman			1	WEB		(\$50.	00)	\$0.00	De	bit		Weekly	12/31	1/2009	1/4/2010	8	2	
573	Daily		*****13	43			test ppd			1	PPD		(\$1.	00)	\$0.00) De	bit	1	Weekly	12/31	1/2009	1/4/2010	1	2	
514	Daily		******13				test ppd			1	PPD		(\$1.	00)	\$0.00	De	bit	1	Weekly	12/31	1/2009	1/4/2010	8	2	
574	Daily		******31	13			Cherice			į	CCD		(\$1,	00)	\$0.00	De	bit		Weekly	12/31	1/2009	1/4/2010	3	2	
526	Weekly		*****54				Weekly 7	Γ		į	CCD		(\$4.	00)	\$0.00) De	bit	1	Weekly	11/9	/2009	11/10/2009			1
580	Daily		*****45	45			Cherice			1	PPD		(\$1.	00)	\$0.00	De	bit	1	Weekly	11/6	5/2009	11/9/2009	3	2	
()							101						(\$244	221	\$0.0	0									>
Count = 19													(parties	19		ŏ									
First Prev	Page	1	of 2	Ne)	xt	Las	t						т	otal	Records: 1	9						Records p	er page:	10	
CAction	n] Is like	e 'D	ebit%'																						Cle
Show Customiza	ation Wind	low	1				Admin Se	etting	gs [f	Rese	et Grid	7				Collar	ose All	11	Expand A	J.			Ex	el Ex	port
		1.1.1	_				1	_	-	-	the second se	_						53 L						-	

The Active Payment Plan grid displays all the Active Payment Plans for a Merchant.

The Payment Plan List screen allows you to Edit, Delete and or Clone a Payment Plan. In addition to showing the currently active plans, you can also click the Show All Pay Plans button to show historical plans which are no longer active. You will be able to

decipher which plans are no longer active as they will have a checkmark in the 'Completed' checkbox. For Custom Schedules, the Schedule Name will be blank.

Important Note: If a Revoke Return comes in against an ABA/Acct combination for which a payment plan is established, the Payment Plan will be immediately deactivated, the payment plan will be noted, and an email will be generated to the merchant indicating the action taken with the Payment Plan ID involved.

ONGOING

A checkmark in this box indicates this payment plan has no end date.

ACTIVE

A checkmark in this box indicates this is an active payment plan.

EDIT

If Edit is selected you will be directed to the Edit Payment Plan screen. Modify the desired information and click Update. Upon updating the information you will be returned to the grid. **Note:** If a user sets the total payments to the number of payments already generated (Next Payment Number - 1) the Payment Plan will be set to Completed upon prompting user.

In addition, from within the Edit Payment Plan screen, you have the ability to "Generate the Next Payment". When you generate the next payment, it will automatically place the transaction in the Future Payments queue. From there you can modify the date and the amount of that payment (i.e. In the event you want to add a service fee for a payment that is being postponed). It is important to note if you modify the amount in the actual Edit Payment Plan screen, and then click Generate Next Payment, it will not only generate the next payment but also update the payment plan to the modified amount for all future payments! Therefore, if you simply want to make the next payment a different amount, generate it, and then modify the amount from within the Future Payments queue. Important Note: Modifying the dollar amount of a one-time payment that is generated in advance, will NOT affect the Remaining Balance or Total Payment Plan Amount.

10	Edit Payment Plan		Other Application
	Laterayment rian		ACHNow
* Transaction Type:	CCD Credit	Note	s
* Routing Transit:	123456780		
* Account Number:	3456789	1	
* Schedule:	Daily	1	
* Check Amount:	\$35.00		
Number of Payments:	10		
Plan Total:	\$350.00	1	
	Ongoing Active		
Addenda Information	telephone bill]	
* First Payment Date:	5/21/2009		
* Next Payment Date:	6/22/2009 👻 Next Rel Date: 6/18/2009 Next Pmt No: 5		
	Generate Next Payment		
Reference:	Check this checkbox to generate the next payment in this		
* Company Name:	B plan		
Address 1:			

EXAMPLE:

John Smith has a payment plan of 10 payments for \$50 once a month on the 1sttotaling \$500. John has only made one payment thus far so his Remaining Balance is \$950. John is now calling in on the May 21st stating he will not be able to make his upcoming payment on June 1st. He is advised we can skip the June 1st payment, however, he will be charged a service fee of \$25. We then Generate Next Payment and click Update. From the Future Payments queue, we edit that transaction that is dated June 1st, changing the date to July 1st and the amount to \$75. The transaction will remain in Future Payments until that date has arrived and will be sent out for \$75. Once the transaction has posted, our payment plan total amount will remain at \$500, the total payments will remain at 10, the next payment number will be 3, the remaining balance will be \$900 and will not reflect the additional \$25 service fee we charged in our July 1st payment.

The system note that is placed in Pay Plan Notes will not currently reflect the modified payment amount, so it is important for the end user to manually place a note indicating the events that transpired.

DELETE

If Delete is selected you will be directed to the Delete Payment Plan screen. Select the check box to confirm the Deletion and click the Delete button. A confirmation message will appear at the bottom of the grid.

CLONE

If Clone is selected you will be directed to the Add Transaction screen. Only the information contained in the following fields may be changed: Tran Type, Schedule, Check Amount, Number of Payments, Plan Total, Addenda Information, Start Date, Reference, Company Name, ID and In – House ID. Make the necessary changes and select the Add button to create another transaction.

PAYMENT PLAN OVERVIEW

You can also view additional payment plan details by clicking on the Pay Plan ID hyperlink. Doing so will take you to the Payment Plan Overview screen.

Pay Plan Detai Start Date Total Plan Amount	is - Weekly		ment Plan Ove		ACHI	2	
Pay Plan Detai Start Date Total Plan Amount	is - Weekly	Day Diam D			ACHI	Now	
Start Date Total Plan Amount	Is - Weekly	Pay Plan, L	aily, For: Bell Atlantic	Cloned			
Start Date Total Plan Amount							
and a second second second	: 6/8/2009 Number Of	Payments: 8 ease Date: NA Next	Amount: \$50.00 Payment Date: NA	SEC Co Next Payment	de: CCD Credit No: NA C	Active: Yes ompleted: Yes	
Pay Plan Histo	ry					💰 Exi	00
Payment No	Release Date	Amount	Generated	St	atus Su	ıbmit Date	
0	5/21/2009	\$0.	00	Sent	to ACH 5	5/21/2009	
1	6/4/2009	\$50.	00	Sent	to ACH	6/4/2009	
2	6/11/2009	\$50.	00	Sent	to ACH 6	6/11/2009	
3	6/18/2009	\$50.	00	Sent	to ACH 6	6/18/2009	
4	6/25/2009	\$50.	00	Sent	to ACH 6	6/25/2009	
5	7/2/2009	\$50.	00	Sent	to ACH	7/2/2009	
Pay Plan Total	5						
Number o	f Payments Paid	k9 Remaining:-1		Amount	Paid: \$400.00 Re	emaining: \$0.00	
Pay Plan Notes	5						
		Note		Type	Added By	Date	
Payment plan cr	eated for Bell Atlantic Cl	oned		System	employee_user	05/21/2009 01:	57
Prenote created				System	employee_user	05/21/2009 01:	57
Payment numbe	r 1 for Payment Date 06	/08/2009 was pre-generated i	n the amount of \$50.00	System	PlannedTransPreGenerate	06/04/2009 04:	05
Payment numbe	r 1 was generated in the	amount of \$50.00		System	PlannedTransGenerate	06/04/2009 07:	10
Add Note							
			1				
			Back				
		Home	Logout	Lega	1		
			Back				

Under the Pay Plan Details heading you can view a snapshot containing the specifics for the plan.

PAY PLAN HISTORY

Pay Plan History provides a listing of <u>each payment</u> that has occurred and its status. You can also export this data by selecting the small Export icon in the upper-right corner of the grid. It is important to note... if you have generated payments in advance and altered the dollar amount of the payment (say to add a service fee), the payment will reflect that modified amount. In the example above, the payment plan amount is \$35. However, payments were generated in advance, the dollar amount was modified, and as you can see...there are payment amounts listed of \$70, \$50, and \$100, as well as a normal payment of \$35. Now, if you look at the Pay Plan Notes it's important to see that the note generated by the system does not reflect the modified payment amounts. We plan to include this in a future release. However, for now, the best practice would be to have the end-user manually add a note when generating a payment in advance.

PAY PLAN TOTALS

Pay Plan Totals give a snapshot of how many payments have been made, the number remaining, and dollar totals for both.

PAY PLAN NOTES

Pay Plan Notes gives you a detailed listing of all activities for that payment plan. Each time a payment is generated, the system generates a note and it is housed here. In addition, users can manually add notes for the plan. Simply click the Add Note button. This will insert a new row with the user's comments, capture who the note was added by and include a timestamp. Once a note has been added it cannot be modified or removed. Again, as mentioned above...Pay Plan Notes for payments which are generated in advance and the dollar amount is modified will not be reflected in the system generated notes and should be noted manually by the end-user. We will be updating these two areas to be in sync in an upcoming release.

Payment number 5 was generated in the amount of \$50.00	System	PlannedTransGenerate	07/02/2009 08:00
Payment number 6 for Payment Date 07/13/2009 was pre-generated in the amount of \$50.00	System	PlannedTransPreGenerate	07/09/2009 04:06
Payment number 6 was generated in the amount of \$50.00	System	PlannedTransGenerate	07/09/2009 08:00
Payment number 7 for Payment Date 07/20/2009 was pre-generated in the amount of \$50.00	System	PlannedTransPreGenerate	07/16/2009 04:05
Payment number 7 was generated in the amount of \$50.00	System	PlannedTransGenerate	07/16/2009 06:38

At the bottom of the Payment Plan Overview screen you have the ability to Forecast upcoming payments by date or payment number.

You're logged Account ID: 10	in as: employee_u 007	Payment Plan Overview	Other Applications
Company1 (1)	007)		ACHNow
38		Pay Plan: Sched-e9e780a2f57046a587e48dbdee5de3de, For: mary white	
Pay Plan	n Details - Weekly		🖹 Edit
Pay Plan	n History		📩 Export
🕀 Pay Plan	n Totals		
🕀 Pay Plan	n Notes		
= Pay Plan	n Forecast		🕺 Export
	Payment No	Payment Date	<u>^</u>
1	з	11/09/2009	
2	4	11/16/2009	1
3	5	11/23/2009	
4	6	11/30/2009	
5	7	12/07/2009	
6	8	12/14/2009	M
	Fore	cast - Starting With Date: 11/9/2009 👻 Ending With Date: 💌 For	ecast
	Forecast	- Starting With Payment: 3 Ending With Payment: 13 For	recast

Upon clicking the Forecast button, you will be presented with a new menu shows a listing of all upcoming payments based on the criteria you entered. Again, you have the ability to Export this grid as well.

FORECAST

From the bottom of the Active Payment Plan screen you can also access forecasting for multiple payment plans. From the Payment Plan Forecast screen, select your start and end dates and click Forecast.

	×	e		га	yment	Plan Fore	sease	ACHNow	
Company1 (1007)	(2.0)							ACHNOW	
	Total Debits	Count: 152	An	nount: \$	2,128.64		Total Credits Count: 30	Amount: \$30.0	00
Test Debit	05/31/2010	Monday	\$10.00	PPD	Debit	******1729	Monthly Schedule		Mont
Test Debit	08/31/2010	Tuesday	\$10.00	PPD	Debit	******1729	Monthly Schedule		Mont
Test Debit	07/31/2010	Saturday	\$10.00	PPD	Debit	******1729	Monthly Schedule		Mont
Test Debit	04/30/2010	Friday	\$10.00	PPD	Debit	******1729	Monthly Schedule		Mont
Test Debit	01/31/2010	Sunday	\$10.00	PPD	Debit	******1729	Monthly Schedule		Mont
Test Debit	10/31/2010	Sunday	\$10.00	PPD	Debit	******3803	Monthly Schedule		Mont
Test Debit	03/31/2010	Wednesday	\$10.00	PPD	Debit	******1729	Monthly Schedule		Moni
Test Debit	02/28/2010	Sunday	\$10.00	PPD	Debit	******1729	Monthly Schedule		Mont
mary white	11/23/2009	Monday	\$15.00	PPD	Debit	******3455	Sched-e9e780a2f570	46a587e48dbdee5de3de	Wee
marv white ∢	11/16/2009	Monday	\$15.00	a second s	Debit	*****3455	Sched-e9e780a2f570	46a587e48dbdee5de3de	Wee Y
ne de	Total Transa	tions				Count: 182	Ar	nount: \$2,158.64	(Jener)
	Forecast - Sta	rt: 11/4/2009	~	En	d: 11/4/201	0 😽 Grid Ty	pe: Outlook O Hierarchical	Forecast	

You will then receive a listing of all upcoming payments for all payment plans within the date range selected. You can select between two views. The Outlook view is shown above. The Hierarchal view is shown below.

om	pany1 (1007)	×			0.0		Plan Forecast	ACHNov	e	
Ĩ		- Marine								
127	Total		1.	t: 152	Amount: \$2,128	8.64			mount: \$30.00	
H	Test Debit	\$10.00	PPD	Debit	*****3803		Monthly Schedule	Monthly Fixed	10	
Ð	Monthly Ongoing	\$2.00	PPD	Debit	*****6465		Monthly Schedule	Monthly Fixed	NA	1
•	test ppd	\$1.00	PPD	Debit	*****1343		Daily	Weekly	2	
Ð	Cherice	\$1.00	PPD	Debit	*****4545		Daily	Weekly	2	
Ð	webman	\$50.00	WEB	Debit	*****3456		Daily	Weekly	2	
	New Ongoing Monthly	\$107.22	PPD	Debit	*****5343		Monthly on 1st	Monthly Fixed	NA	
			Payme	ent Date			Day Of Week		Paym	en
			12/0	1/2009		Tu	Jesday			
			01/0	1/2010		Fr	ida <mark>y</mark>		1	1
			02/0	1/2010		Mo	onday			1
¢						113				>
	Tota	al Transa	actions				Count: 182	Amount: \$2,15	3.64	
	Famo	ant Ch		14/2000	rade 1	1/4/201		Ears		
	Forec	ast - St	art: 11	/4/2009 😽	End: 1	1/4/201	10 🕑 Grid Type: 🔘 Outlook 🖲 Hiera	rchical Fore	cast	

The data return is the same for both. Outlook lists all rows at once. Hierarchal offers a one row entry for each payment plan with the ability to expand/collapse using the '- / +' icons. Both grid types allow you to Export the data displayed.

REPORTS

When clicking on the reports tab you are brought to the Reports overview page. From this screen you will be able to select Reports that can be used to review and validate your activity.

You're logged in as: employee_u Account ID: 1005			Other Applic	Other Applications			
Company2 (1005)	N		Reports		ACHNow	Y	
	[🐻 Home 💰 Transactions 谢 Proces	ssing 👌 Files 🛛 👹	Pay Plans 🛛 💽 Reports			
	li -		Reports				
	If you are h	Select a Report: Ad	specific batch number. Proceed	ocated in the upper-righ	t corner.	×	
		Home	Logout	Legal			

Use the Select a Report dropdown window to choose the report you wish to view. When the report is selected a brief description of that particular report is displayed in the text box. Click the Proceed button to request the report selected.

The report can be displayed in Excel, CSV, or PDF formats. Select between these Report Formats by selecting the radio button and click OK. Click the Cancel button to return to the pervious page. For reports that require you select a row, the Print button remains disabled until you have selected a row.

You can drill-down to the transaction detail on all transaction reports by selection the various hyperlinks shown in blue. You also have the ability to Print from the View Transaction screen.

'ou're logged in as: employee_u Account ID: 1007		1	Transactions By Batch												1	Other Applications								
mpany1 (1007))	*																	ACHNow					
	Batch	ID:				Search) :	Sut	bmit	Da	te From:		8/15/200	19 😽	То	: 11/4/20	09	*		Se	arch		
Drag a column I	header her	e to	group	by that	colum	ก																		
Tran ID	Batch ID		HID B	Sub Date	• •	Consumer Name		Ref	•	Check No	1	Check Date	-	Bank 🖃	Bank Acct		Status 💌	Paid	(E) F	RC 🖸	Ret		Debit 🗵	Credit 💌
٣		9	5	2	8		Ŷ		Ŷ		Ŷ	5	?	9		Ŷ	Ŷ		9	Ş	2	9	Ŷ	\$
1003183	2	38	1.000	8/19	/2009	Weekly Tu	1	13 of	0			8/18/200	9	******	*****		Sent to	Paid					\$4.00	\$0.00
1223207	2	40		8/20	/2009	test						8/19/200	9		*****		Sent to	Paid					\$4.00	\$0.00
1223215	2	44		8/21	/2009	Billy Bob						8/20/200	9	*****	*****		Sent to	Paid					\$0.00	\$5.00
1223221	23	46		8/26	5/2009	Weekly Tu		14 of	0			8/25/200	9	*****	*****	·	Sent to	Paid					\$4.00	\$0.00
	2.			01	10000	N 0	1	1 -6 0	3			0/1/200	-	*****	alis alis alis alis alis a		C + + -	naid						** **
Count = 49																							\$746.66 43	\$62.00 6
First Prev	Page 1		of 2	Next	Last							Total R	ec	ords: 49							Re	cord	s per page:	25 [
Show Customizat	tion Window	1			F	Idmin Setting	IS	Rese	t Gri	d 🗸				Co	llapse Al		Expand Al	ĩ					Exce	Export
			1	PDF For	in in		1					ected ~	E	1.5 2010/10/10/10/10	ch Into i	1.15	i i	-	ancel	-1				

Select Open to view the Report or select Save to save the file to your local hard drive.

File Down	oad	×
Do you v	ant to open or save this file?	
	Name: TransactionsByBatchReport_20070514101941.pdf Type: Adobe Acrobat Document From: www.achnow.us Open Save Cancel)
- 💘 F	hile files from the Internet can be useful, some files can potentially irm your computer. If you do not trust the source, do not open or ve this file. What's the risk?	ŗ

Once the report is produced, you have the option to print it and or save it to your local workstation. Please refer to Appendix B for a list of Reports and definitions.

APPENDIX A : SEC CODE DEFINITIONS

The following definitions were taken from NACHA's ACH Rules:

ARC - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE TRUNCATED CHECK DEBIT

An ACH debit of a check received in the U.S. Mail and converted to an electronic item. The definition of U.S. Mail includes mail delivered by the United States Postal Service as well as mail delivered via courier service, including but limited to, federal Express, United Parcel Service, or other local courier service and does not include items personally delivered or deposited in a merchants night drop. These checks are not considered to have been delivered by U.S. Mail and are not eligible for truncation. Corporate checks are not eligible for truncation.

BOC - BACK OFFICE CONVERSION ENTRIES (EFFECTIVE MARCH 16, 2007)

This Standard Entry Class code enables Originators, during back office processing, to convert to a Single-Entry ACH debit an eligible check received at the point of purchase or manned bill payment location for the in-person purchase of goods or services. The Receiver's source document (i.e., the check) is used to collect the Receiver's routing number, account number, check serial number, and dollar amount for the transaction. Authorization for a BOC entry is obtained through notice provided by the Originator at the point of purchase or manned bill payment location and the Receiver's going forward with the transaction.

CBR - CORPORATE CROSS-BORDER PAYMENT (NO LONGER SUPPORTED SEPTEMBER 18, 2009)

This Standard Entry Class Code is used for the transmission of corporate cross-border ACH credit and debit entries. This SEC Code allows cross-border payments to be readily identified so that financial institutions may apply special handling requirements for cross-border payments, as desired. The CBR format accommodates detailed information unique to cross-border payments (e.g., foreign exchange conversion, origination and destination currency, country codes, etc.).

CCD - CASH CONCENTRATION OR DISBURSEMENT

An ACH debit or credit from or to a Business Account. Under the rules PPD transactions to a business account are not a proper SEC Code and may be returned. Like PPD, proper authorization from the owner of the target account is required.

ENR - AUTOMATED ENROLLMENT ENTRY

This optional SEC Code allows a depository financial institution to transmit ACH enrollment information to Federal Government Agencies via the ACH Network for future credit and debit applications on behalf of both consumers and companies.

IAT - INTERNATIONAL ACH TRANSACTION

Effective September 18, 2009, this Standard Entry Class Code is used for the transmission of credit entries that are part of a payment transaction involving a financial agency's office that is not located in the territorial jurisdiction of the United States. Transactions can only be initiated to Mexico via the ACHNow Application at this time.

PBR - CONSUMER CROSS-BORDER PAYMENT (NO LONGER SUPPORTED SEPTEMBER 18, 2009)

This Standard Entry Class Code is used for the transmission of consumer cross-border ACH credit and debit entries. This SEC Code allows cross-border payments to be readily identified so that financial institutions may apply special handling requirements for cross-border payments, as desired.

The PBR format accommodates detailed information unique to cross-border payments (e.g., foreign exchange conversion, origination and destination currency, country codes, etc.).

POP - POINT-OF-PURCHASE

Used as an ACH debit application as a method of payment for the in-person purchase of goods or services by consumers. These nonrecurring debit entries are initiated by the Originator based on a written authorization and account information drawn from the source document (a check) obtained from the consumer at the point of purchase. - *Also known as ECC (Electronic Check Conversion)*

PPD - PREARRANGED PAYMENT AND DEPOSIT

DIRECT DEPOSIT

A Credit application that transfers funds into a consumer account at the Receiving Depository Financial Institution. The funds being deposited can represent a variety of products, such as payroll, interest, pension, dividends, etc.

PREAUTHORIZED BILL PAYMENT

A Debit application. Companies with billing operations may participate in the ACH through the electronic transfer (direct debit) of bill payment entries. Through standing authorizations, the consumer grants the authority to initiate one time or periodic charges to his or her account as bills become due.

RCK - RE-PRESENTED CHECK

A re-presented check is an ACH debit application used by originators to re-present a check that has been processed through the check collection system and returned because of insufficient or uncollected funds.

TEL - TELEPHONE-INITIATED ENTRY

For single entry debit transactions to a consumer's account pursuant to an oral authorization obtained from the consumer via telephone. This type of transaction may only be used when there is no standing authorization for the origination of ACH entries to the receivers account and may only be originated when there is either (1) an existing relationship between the Originator and the Receiver, or (2) no existing relationship between the Originator and the Receiver, but the Receiver has initiated the telephone call.

WEB - INTERNET-INITIATED ENTRY

A debit entry to a Consumer Account initiated by an Originator pursuant to an authorization that is obtained from the receiver via the Internet. There are two components of the definition that are important to address:

- 1. The WEB SECC is only appropriate to use when initiating debit entries that have been authorized by the receiver via the Internet.
- 2. An authorization that was obtained from the receiver in person, through the mail, or over the telephone in order to effectuate an Internet payment is not to be initiated as a WEB transaction.
- 3. credit entries cannot be initiated except for reversals of WEB debit entries.

APPENDIX B: REPORT DEFINITIONS

ACH TRANSMITTAL REGISTER

This report will print out a summary of transactions within a specific batch. This report can be used by those who use Net Settlements as well as those that do not.

BATCH SUMMARIES

This report displays all the Batch Summaries within the date range provided. This Date Range should be for the Dates the Account Batches were created.

CORRECTIONS BY SUBMIT DATE

This report displays Exception transactions for a Selected Submit Date Range. Corrections are those returns that have been corrected by the receiving bank. Corrections are a notification for the merchant to update or correct their records. Corrections usually come back with a "C" return code and a zero dollar amount.

MERCHANT GROUP TOTALS

This report provides a summary of debits and credits by merchant for a specific date range.

NET SETTLEMENTS

This report displays the Net Settlement Information for a Selected Settlement Date Range. This report should correspond to the day in which funds are either deposited or withdrawn from your account. Actual availability or posting of funds depends upon the rules of the receiving bank. Since Fees can be generated as separate net settlements, they may appear as separate settlements and usually appear as debit batches on the same day as other batches.

NON RE-SUBMITTED RETURNS

This report displays all the Returns according to Return Date within the date range provided. It will report those transactions that have been returned and are older than 5 days from the submission date. It offers a First Level drill down to view the detail of an individual transaction. At this final level, the user is offered the options of Resubmitting, Killing, or duplicating this individual transaction depending upon the age and status of the transaction.

PRE – TRANSMISSION

This report will display all new transactions. These are the transactions that are in "Ready to Process" status.

This report comes in both a standard and Optional Format. The Optional Format will export the columns and data in the same order as Legacy ACHNow. The Optional Format is available for both Excel and CSV.

PREVIOUSLY PAID RETURNS

This report will display all Return transactions that are included in a net settlement but were previously paid out. These are transactions that are part of a net settlement.

RETURNS BY CHECK DATE

This report displays all the Returns according to Return Date within the date range provided.

RETURNS BY RETURN DATE

This report displays all the Returns according to Return Date within the date range provided.

RETURNS BY SUBMIT DATE

This report displays all Returns according to the Submit Date within the date range provided.

RETURNS TO REVIEW

This report displays the current day's returned transactions. You also have the ability to view prior day's returned items which have not yet been addressed by using the date range fields.

SETTLEMENT BATCHES BY DATE

This report displays all the Settlement Batches for a specific date range. The date range should be for the dates of settlement.

SETTLEMENT BATCHES BY DATE DETAIL

This report displays the details for all SettleBatchID's and ReturnSettleID's for the date specified (maximum of 31 days).

TRANSACTIONS BY BATCH

This report will list transactions within a specific batch. You can search by either Batch ID or Date. In addition, this report allows you to create a new payment plan by Duplicating a Batch into a Payment Plan. A payment will be created for every transaction within that batch. You can then view the new payment plans from the Active Payment Plans List. If a transaction has both a correction and a return, only the return will be displayed on this report.

TRANSACTIONS BY DATE

This report displays all Transactions within the date range you provide. The Date Range you use should be that of the Check Date.

TRANSACTIONS BY DATE - EXPORTED

This report displays all the Transactions within the date range provided. The Date Range should be selected for the Check Date. By default, all displayed transactions are selected. Clicking the Export Transactions Selected button will mark each as Exported. The user can then choose to run the report again in the future choosing whether to Exclude/Include Exported transactions. This feature was previously in Legacy ACHNow as a 'Save Address Info' radio button.

This report comes in both a standard and Optional Format. The Optional Format will export the columns and data in the same order as Legacy ACHNow.

TRANSACTIONS BY NET SETTLE ID

This report displays all transactions for a given net settlement.

USER ENTRIES BY DATE

This report displays all transactions with User Names for each entry within the date range provided.